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For the year ended 30 June 2008
(Previous corresponding period: Year ended 30 June 2007)

Results for Anncuncement to the Market

30 June 2008

The reporting period is from 1 July 2007 to 30 June 2008 with the corresponding reporting period being from 1 July 2006 to

30 June 2007.
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%

$000's

awnd
~! income)
(Appendix 4£ item 2.1)

Revenue from ordinary activities (net interest and fee

up

50 %

to

8,961

Profit / (loss} from ardinary activities before tax

up

623 %

to

3,143

Profit / {loss) from ordinary activities after tax
attributable to members
{Appendix 4E itemm 2.2)

up

751 %

to

1,927

Net profit / {loss) for the period attributable to
members
(Appendix 4E item 2.3}

up

751 %

to

1,827

e/ @W
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Dividends / distributions
(Appendix 4E item 2.4)

o

2008 (cents)

2007 (cents)

Final dividend

| 1

NIL

NIL

Interim dividend

NIL

NIL

&

=1 Key Ratios

2008 (cents)

2007 (cents)

—1 Basic and diluted eamnings per share
h (Appendix 4E item 4.1)

3.0

(0.5)

y Net tangible assets per share
N (Appendix 4E item 9)
A

30.4

27.1

SRR

¢/

,(’3

j

Brief explanation necessary to enable the figures above to be understood is as follows:
@D (Appendix 4E item 2.6)

Explanation of Revenue

o

Consolidated net interest and fee income was up 50 percent to $8.96 million from $5.96 million previously reflecting strong
volume growth in the loan book which totalled $65.3 million at 30 June 2008,



Impact Capital Limited
For the year ended 30 June 2008
(Previous corresponding period: Year ended 30 June 2007}

Results for Announcement to the Market
30 June 2008
{continued)

Explanation of Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before tax
kExc!uding the loss on sale of the investment in Impact Holdings (UK} Ptc of $0.81 miillion, the Group's operations have
performed weli generating an operating profit of $3.96 million which represents a 58 percent increase when compared with
%\ the operating profit of $2.51 million in the prior year as adjusted for the impairment and dilution gain relating to the
- investment.

Interest expense increased to $3.39 million from $1.43 million previously, reflecting an increase of $20 million in total debt
drawn and higher base funding costs (BBSW) caused by the volatility in both Australian and global debt markets.

Other expenses have increased over the prior year by 45 percent, This increase reflects strategic investments in staff,
marketing platforms and systems and corresponds to the growth of the business.

Explanation of Net Profit/(loss) attributable to members
For the year ended 30 June 2008 the consolidated net profit attributable to members was $1.93 million which represents a
significant increase from the prior year loss after tax of $0.3 million.

The current year profit includes a loss on the sale of the remainder of the Company's passive investment in Impact
Holdings (UK) Plc of $0.81 million. The prior year loss included impairment and c¢hange in fair value on this same
investment of $2.4 million.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of Impact Capital Limited is scheduled to be held at the offices of WHK Horwath, corner of
Edward and Charlotte Streets, Brisbane, Queensland at 11.00AM on 21 November 2008.

Audit status (Appendix 4E iftem 15)
This Appendix 4E and the attached financial statements have been audited.
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! Impact Capital Limited
‘ Directors' report
‘ 30 June 2008

Directors’ report

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as the Group) consisting of Impact
Capital Limited and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2008.

/

1 Directors
——— The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

Mr Kenneth R Rich B Com, MBA, PNA
Chairperson and Independent Non-Executive Director. Age 63.

Experience and expertise

Independent non-executive director since 24 January 2005 and chairperson since 1 July 2006.

Mr Rich is a business and financial management specialist. He is a director of Rich & Co Pty and a former director of
Horwath Motor Industry Services Pty Ltd. He is a member of the Australian Institute Of Company Directors and the
Institute of Management Consultants.

Other current listed company directorships
Nil

Former listed company directorships in last 3 years
Nil

Special responsibilities

Chairperson of Audit Committee,
Member of Remuneration Commitiee.
Member of Risk Management Committee.
Member of Nomination Committee.

Mr Russell E Templeton LLB
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer. Age 52.

Experience and expertise
Executive director and Chief Executive Officer since 16 November 2004,
Mr Templetan has been in practice as a lawyer for over twenty years, has extensive commercial and litigation experience

ersonal use on

and has also:
. been involved with a network of legal practitioners;
. owned licensed commercial agencies,
@ been consuitant to and then Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive Qfficer of Collection House Limited, an
ASX listed debt portfolio manager.

Other current listed company directorships
Nil

O Former listed company directorships in last 3 years
- Nif
1
.
L—-—"- Special responsibilities
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer,
Member of Nomination Committee.



Impact Capital Limited
Directors' report

30 June 2008
{continued)

1 Directors (continued)

Mr Lawrence J Lizow FCA, ACIS
Independent Non-Executive Director. Age 74.

[ /\’Experience and expertise

Independent non-executive director since 16 November 2004. Company Secretary from 16 November 2004 to 30 June
2007.

Mr Litzow is a Chartered Accountant who has been in private practice for over 40 years and managing partner for six
years. He is a private equity investor and a director and secretary of ASX listed companies. His directorships and industry
expertise include minerals and exploration, property and construction, pharmaceutical, information technology, media and
marketing and financial services.

Mr Litzow has also been a committee member advising the Commonwealth Minister for Small Business regarding
innovation and chairing a sub-committee reporting on small business taxation reform. He consults and advises on matters
such as IPO's and economic loss assessments for courts of faw.

Other current listed company directorships
Diatreme Resources Limited from January 2002.
Superior Resources Limited from 2005 - company listed in November 2007.

Former listed company directorships in fast 3 years
Tamawood Limited, June 2000 to March 2006.
Occupational & Medical Innovations Limited, July 2004 to October 2005.

Special responsibilitios

Chairman of Risk Management Committee.
Member of Audit Committee.

Member of Nomination Committee.

Mr John W Laurie B Ec, FCPA
Independent Non-Executive Director. Age 73.

Experience and expertise

Independent non-executive director since 21 August 2004.

Mr Laurie is Chairperson of Twilight House Ltd, deputy chairperson of HHO Multimedia Australasia Pty Ltd and a director
of a number of private investment companies. His directorships and industry experience include construction materials,
transport, contracting, aged care and retirement facilities, entertainment and housewares.

arsonal use onl

J

L2 0ther current listed company directorships
Pacific Enviromin Limited (formerly Techstar Limited} from January 2000.

!

r.7

N
~— Former listed company directorships in last 3 years

@ Nil

| ’—1 - Special responsibilities

; Co I_' Chairman of Remuneration Committee.
: Member of Audit Committee.

Member of Nomination Committee.




Impact Capital Limited
Directors’ report

30 June 2008
(continued)

2 Company Secretary

Ms Alison Hill, B Com, MBA, CA, FFin, was appointed to the position of Company Secretary on 19 December 2006. Ms
Hill has a Graduate Diploma in Applied Corporate Governance and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries of Australia. Ms Hill is also the Chief Financial Officer for the Group.

1y

3 Meetings of directors
The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings attended by
each of the directors of the Company during the financial year are:

Meaetings of committees

Board Audit Risk
Meetings Committee |Remuneration{ Nomination | Management
Meetings Committee Committee Committee

Meetings Meetings Meetings
A B A B A B A B A B

SISO

/] Mr Kenneth Rich 13 13 6 6 4 4 1 1 3 3
— Mr Russell Templeton 13 13 - s e . 1 1 e .
)3 Mr Lawrence Litzow 13| 13 ] s 6 | = | - 1 1 3 3
— Mr John Laurie 11 13 5 6 4 4 1 1 - **

A = Number of meetings attended
— B = Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the committee during the year
** = Not a member of the relevant committee

€l
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Impact Capital Limited
Directors’ report

30 June 2008
(continued)

4 Directors’ and executive officers’ remuneration (Company and Consolidated) - audited
The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:

A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
B Details of remuneratiocn

C Service contracts
D
E

S

Share-based compensation
Consequences of performance on shareholder wealth.

The information provided in this remuneration report has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Corporations
Act 2001,

A  Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

The objectives of the Group's executive compensation strategy is to ensure it attracts and retains executives with
qualifications, experience and industry knowledge appropriate to support the continued success of the business and
creation of sharehclder value, and it rewards executive performance on a basis that is competitive and appropriate for the
results delivered.

The strategy through a combination of fixed remuneration and short and long term incentives aligns executive reward with
achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value for shareholders, and conforms with market practice for
delivery of reward. The Board ensures that executive compensation strategies satisfy the following key criteria for good
reward and governance practices:

. competitiveness and reasonableness

. acceptability to shareholders

. performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation
. transparency

. capital management,

In consultation with external remuneration consultants, the Group has structured an executive remuneration strategy that
is market competitive and complementary to the reward strategy of the organisation.

Alignment to shareholder's interests;

. has operating profit as a core component of plan design

. focuses on sustained growth in shareholder wealth, and delivering consistent return on assets as well as
focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of value

. attracts and retains high calibre executives.

Alignment to strategy participants interests:

rewards capability and experience

reflects competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth
provides a clear structure for earning rewards

provides recognition for contribution.

The Board has established a remuneration commitiee which provides advice on remuneration and incentive policies and
‘ practices and specific recommendations on remuneration packages and other terms of employment for executive
%O directors, other senior executives and non-executive directors. The Corporate Governance Statement provides further
—information on the role of this committee,

~ Non-executive directors

c‘k“—: Total compensation for all non-executive directors, last voted upon by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting heid on
T 21 November 2007, is not to exceed $250,000 per annum with that sum to be divided amongst the directors in such

//”\\ manner and proportion as they agree. Non-executive directors do not receive any performance-linked compensation.

\K_//’j Director's fees cover all main board activities including membership of board committees.

Fixed Compensation
Compensation consists of fixed compensation {which is calculated on a total cost basis and includes any FBT charges
——i related to employee benefits), as well as any applicable employee contributions to superannuation funds,

Fixed compensation leveis are reviewed annually by the remuneration committee to ensure that this compoenent is
commensurate with the market worth of the executive role and appropriately reflects the position of the individual within the
role having regard to qualifications, experience and capabilities. There are no guaranteed fixed compensation increases
included within the contractual arrangements with any key management personnel,
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Impact Capital Limited
Directors’ report

30 June 2008
(continued)

4 Directors' and executive officers’ remuneration (Company and Consolidated) - audited (continued)
A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration (continued)

Performance-linked compensation, including consequence of performance on shareholders wealth

Performance linked compensation includes short-term and fong-term incentives, and is designed to reward key
management personnel for meeting or exceeding annual corporate performance and individual financial and personal
odbjectives. The short-term incentive (STI) is an ‘at risk’ bonus provided in the form of cash, while the long-term incentive
(LTI} is provided as options over the ordinary shares of the Company under the rules of the Executive Share Option Plan
(see note 29 to financial statements).

(a) Short-term incentives

On an annual basis, a short-term incentive pool is made available to executives excluding the Managing Director and
CEQ. This pool is distributed amongst relevant executives, as a cash bonus, by measurement against a pre-determined
profit target and dependent on the accountabilities of the role, impact on arganisational and team performance, and
achievement of individual objectives such that the incentive is leveraged for performance above the threshold to provide
an incentive for out-performance.

The use of a profit target ensures the variable reward is only available when value has been created for shareholders and
when profit generated is consistent with the business strategy. The maximum short-term incentive opportunity for the year
ended 30 June 2008 was $100,000 (2007: nil} per relevant executive.

Each year, the remuneration committee considers the appropriate targets and key perfarmance indicators (KPis}) to link
the STI plan and the level of payout if previous year targets are met. This includes setting any maximum payout under the
STI plan, and minimum levels of performance to trigger payment of ST

The remuneration committee is responsible for assessing whether the KPIs are met. To help make this assessment, the
committee receives detailed reports on performance from management.

The short-term bonus payments may be adjusted up or down in line with under or over achievement against the target
performance levels. This is at the discretion of the remuneration committee however no such discretion has been
exercised in the current year.

(b) Long-term incentives
Long-term incentives are provided to executives by the issue of options over ordinary shares of the Company.

The inclusion of share price hurdles as qualifying conditions for the exercise of options granted in the current year is
considered by the remuneration committee as a reasonable means for ensuring the reward is only available to executives
when real and sustained value is delivered to shareholders.

The terms of issue of the options as long-term incentives in the current financial year are set out on pages 11 - 12.

(¢) Other benefits

Key management personng! can receive a proportion of their fixed compensation as non-cash benefits under the terms
and conditions of their appointment. Non-cash benefits typically include the provisions of items which may be taxed on a
concessional basis for FBT purposes. Key management personnel are also entitled to salary sacrifice fixed compensation
as additional superannuation contributions,

B Details of remuneration

The key management personnel of the Group are the directors of Impact Capital Limited and those executives that report
O;_directly to the Managing Directar & CEO being:

. B Lyle - General Counsel

. B Gebauers - General Manager - Compliance and Special Projects*

. A Hill - Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

* B Gebauers was appointed as General Manager Compliance and Special Projects on 1 March 2008. Prior to this
appointment he was the company’s Chief Operating Officer. Amounts shown in the following table include all Mr
-/ Gebauers' remuneration during the reporting period, whether as the General Manager Compliance and Special Projects or

Olr

H ,_l' Chief Operating Officer.

|
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Impact Capital Limited
Directors’ report

30 June 2008
{continued)

4 Directors’ and executive officers' remuneration (Company and Consolidated) - audited (continued)

C Service contracts

The Group has formalised service contracts with each key management person. The service contracts, excluding the
Managing Director and CEQ's, are unlimited in term but are capable of termination with between 3 and 24 months notice,
where the Group retains the right to terminate the contract immediately by making payment equal to 100 per cent of base
salary for the relevant period in lieu of notice. The key management personnel are atso entitled to receive on termination
of their employment their statutory entitlements of accrued annual and long service leave together with any
superannuation benefits.

The service contracts outline the components of compensation paid but do not prescribe how compensation levels are
modified year to year. Compensation levels are reviewed by the remuneration committee to take into account cost of living
changes, changes (if any) to the scope of the role performed by the key management person and any changes required to
meet the principles of the compensation policy.

Mr Russell Templeton, the Managing Director and CEO, has a contract of employment dated 2 July 2007 with the Group.
The contract specifies the duties and obligations to be fulfilled by the Chief Executive Officer. The contract is unlimited in
term but is capable of termination with 6 months notice by the Chief Executive Officer or 24 months notice by the Group.
The Group retains the right to terminate the contract immediately by making payment equal to 100 per cent of base salary
for the relevant period in lieu of notice. The Chief Executive Officer is entitled to receive on termination of his employment
his statutory entitlements of accrued annual and long service leave together with any superannuation benefits.

The Managing Director and CEO has no entitlement to termination payment in the event of removal for misconduct.
The Group has not entered into any formal service contracts with its non-executive directors.

D Share-based compensation

Options over the ordinary shares of Impact Capital Limited are granted under the terms of the Impact Capital Limited
Executive Option Plan which was approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 21 November 2007.
The Executive Option Plan is designed to provide long-term incentives for executives, including executive directors, to
deliver long-term shareholder returns. Under the plan, executives are granted options which only vest if the executive
completes a specified period of service, The plan states that the determination of the exercise conditions are at the
discretion of the directors.

The terms and conditions of each grant of options affecting remuneration in this or future reporting periods are as follows:

W INVE[FSM)

Name Number of options | Grant date | Fair value per |Exercise price Date Expiry date Exercise
)) granted during the option at grant | per option ($)| exercisable hurdle
year date ($) share price ($)

~ Executive directors

) R Templeton 370,000 23111/2007 0.154 0.600 23/11/2008 | 2311112012 0.80
370,000 2311112007 0.144 0.600 2311112009 | 23112012 1.10
370,000 2311112007 0.136 0.600 231112010 | 231172012 1.50

=

~ Other key management personne!

) B Lyle 50,000 23/11/2007 0.221 0.645 23112008 | 23/11/2012 0.80
50,000 23/11/2007 0.213 0.645 23112009 | 231112012 1.10
50,000 2311112007 0.174 0.645 231142010 | 23/11/2012 1.50

D_B Gebauers 40,000 2311112007 0.221 0.645 23112008 | 2311/2012 0.80

— 40,000 231112007 0.213 0.645 23142009 | 23/11/2012 1.10
40,000 231112007 0.174 0.645 23112010 | 231172012 1.50

- A Hill 50,000 2311172007 0.221 0.645 2311/2008 | 2311112012 0.80
50,000 231172007 0.213 0.645 2311442009 | 23/11/2012 1.10
50,000 23/11/2007 0.174 0.645 23112010 | 2311172012 1.50

b

UL

No options vested during the 2008 financial year.
Options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights.

The exercise price of options is determined by the directors but is no less than the volume weighted average price at which
the Company's shares are traded on the Australian Stock Exchange during the five trading days immediately before the
options are granted or such other price as approved by shareholders in general meeting.

-11-
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Impact Capital Limited
Directors' report

30 June 2008
{continued)

4 Directors' and executive officers’ remuneration (Company and Consolidated) - audited (continued)

D Share-based compensation (continued)

The Board is currently considering a policy that prohibits executives from removing the 'at risk’ aspect of the instruments

granted to them under the executive remuneration policy and which is expected to be introduced prior to 1 November

2008. At 30 June 2008 executives have confirmed that no agreements were held that removed the ‘at risk’ aspect of
>options granted during the year.

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted to the individuals is allocated equally over the period from grant

date to vesting date, and the amount is included in the remuneration tables above. Fair values at grant date are
independently determined using Black-Scholes and Binomial option pricing models that take into account the exercise
price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the
underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 30 June 2008 included:

(a) options are granted for no consideration and vest based on the completion of a specified period of service.
Vested options are exercisable for a period between 2 and 4 years after vesting (see page 11).
(b) options are exercisable only in the event of the Company's share price reaching certain qualifying prices during

Tranche 3 $1.50

the life of the options with such prices as follows:
Tranche 1 $0.80
Tranche 2 $1.10

(c) exercise price: $0.60 and $0.645
(d) grant date: 23 Navember 2007
(e) expiry date: 22 November 2012
f share price at grant date; $0.69
{9) expected price volatility of the company's shares: 32%
{h) expected dividend yield: nil
oy {i) risk-free interest rate: 6.115%.
@ E Consequences of performance on shareholder wealth
Performance of Impact Capital Limited
As outlined above, one of the objectives of the Group's executive compensation strateqgy is to ensure the reward provided
to executives is aligned to growth in Shareholder value in both the short and long term.
STI results and payments
In determining the use of operating profit before tax as the key driver for STl rewards in the current financial year, the
© remuneration committee considered both profit performance over the past two financial years and the essential role of
executive reward in driving the operational performance of the Group and delivering real and sustained increases in
shareholder value.
@ The following table shows increases achieved in underlying business growth despite such growth not reaching the
threshold required to ensure any element of the STl in the current financial year being due and payable to executives.
Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2006
$ 3 3
Earnings
@Net interest and fee income 8,960,903 5,961,692 2,833,398
E Net operating profit before tax * 3,850,431 2,511,126 64,235
EPS 0.030 (0.005) 0.002
(L Shareholder value
I~ Share price 0.495 0.665 0.400
Dividends (paid/declared) : - - -
@ * Adjusted for gain / loss on sale and dilution and impairment refating to the Company's invesiment in Impact Moldings (UK) Plc.
Shareholder value and earnings history is provided only in respect of the financial years since the reverse acquisition of
I_Ejl__, Impact Capital Limited.

LTI resuit

In determining the use of the Company's share price as an appropriate performance hurdle for the exercise of vested
options, the remuneration committee recognised that this was a key indicator of shareholder value, particularly over the
period when dividends paid/payable were likely to be limited under the Groups capital management strategy.

No element of the LTI plan has vested or become available for exercise in the current financial year.

12
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STl Cash bonus LTI Options
Financial Number of}
=3 years in options
which vested
C )) Year options | Number | during
Name Paid |Forfeited| granted | Vested |Forfeited | may vest | granted 2008
% % Yo Y
R Templeton - - 2008 - - 2009 370,000 -
@ D 2008 - - 2010 370,000 -
2008 - - 2011 370,000 -
B Lyle - 100 2008 - - 2009 50,000 -
@ D 2008 - - 2010 50,000 -
2008 - - 2011 50,000 -
|2 B Gebauers - 100 2008 - - 2009 40,000 -
§ 2008 - - 2010 40,000 -
 S— 2008 - - 2011 40,000 -
A Hill - 100 2008 - - 2009 50,000 -
2008 - - 2010 50,000 -
—== 2008 ] - 2011 | 50,000 -

Impact Capital Limited
Directors' report

30 June 2008
(continued}

4 Directors' and executive officers' remuneration (Company and Consolidated) - audited (continued) .
E Consequences of performance on shareholder wealth (continued)

Details of remuneration: cash bonuses and options

For each cash bonus and grant of options included in the tables on pages 10 and 11, the percentage of the available
bonus or grant that was paid, or that vested, in the financial year, and the percentage that was forfeited because the
person did not meet the service criteria is set out below. No part of the bonuses is payabile in future years. The options
vest over the next three years provided the vesting conditions are met (see page 12 above).

5 Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group during the course of the financial year was outlay funding and presettlement lending to
claimants awaiting settlement of injuries, matrimonial or estate litigation in Australia and New Zealand.

T

here were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Group during the year.

6 Review of operations

Overview of the consolidated entity

The Group has focused on growing its Loan Book (loans and advances) in response to strong and sustained demand for
its existing suite of products.

This growth has been acheived with strict adherance to well established and proven asessment processes and credit
policies and procedures.

Review of financial performance and position

Consvolidated operating profit after tax

For the year ended 30 June 2008 the consolidated net profit attributable to members was $1.93 million which represents a
O significant increase from the prior year loss after tax of $0.3 million.

DErsona

The current year profit includes a loss on the sale of the remainder of the Company's passive investment in Impact
Holdings (UK) Plc of $0.81 million. The prior year loss included impairment and change in fair value on this same
& investment of $2.4 million.

Earnings per share increased to 3.0 cents.
Profit from operations

which represents a 58 percent increase when compared with the operating profit of $2.51 million in the prior year.

B U Excluding the loss on sale the Group's operations have performed well generating an operating profit of $3.96 million

Consolidated gross interest and fee income was up 50 percent to $8.96 million from $5.96 million previously reflecting
strong volume growth in the loan book which totalled $65.3 million at 30 June 2008.

Interest expense increased to $3.39 million from $1.43 million previously, reflecting an increase of $20 million in total debt
drawn as the Group continued to leverage of its existing shareholders funds, and higher base funding costs (BBSW)
caused by the volatility in both Australian and global debt markets.
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6 Review of operations (continued)
The amount provisioned for impaired loans reduced by 0.8 percent to $0.30 million reflecting strict adherence to lending
policies and procedures and continuous monitoring of all loans regardiess of the performance status.

Other expenses have increased over the prior year by 45 percent. This increase reflects strategic investments in staff,
~... marketing platforms and systems and corresponds to the growth of the business.

‘Capital structure and gearing

Consolidated interest bearing debt at the end of the financial year was $45 million (2007: $25 million) which represents 65
percent of book assets (2007: 55 percent) and a gearing ratio of 68 percent (2007: 54 percent). A further $5m of the debt
facility was unutilised at 30 June 2008. This level of gearing is considered appropriate given the Group's business model,
the relative liquidity of the Group's assets and the high level of collateral provided by the underlying security of those
assets,

Consolidated net assets
Consolidated net assets have increased to $20.97 million from $18.11 million in the prior year.

Cash flows

Consolidated cash flows from operations were a net inflow for the year of $0.25 million, an improvement from net outflows
of $0.38 million for the prior year. These cash flows, together with cash inflows from increased borrowings were used to
fund the growth in the consolidated loan book and investment in systems.

Shareholder returns

Notwithstanding the previous announcement of a dividend policy and the profitability of the Group, the Board has resolved
that no dividend would be paid in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2008 as the directors are of the opinion that
the retention of funds to support the growth of the business was in the medium and long term interests of shareholders.

7  Significant changes in the state of affairs

During the year the Company and the Group achieved significantly improved operating cashflows. The net operating
inflows together with increased debt facilities was used to fund the substantial growth in Loans and Advances achieved
during the year.

On 18 March 2008, the Company seld its stake in Impact Holdings UK Ple for $1.256 million Australian dollars (AUD) on a
deferred settlement basis, While the consideration will not be received until 31 December 2009, the Company has taken a
charge over the assets of the Purchaser thereby converting an illiquid and non-core asset subject to both exchange rate
and market price fluctuations into an AUD receivable,

8 Dividends - Impact Capital Limited
No dividends were paid or declared during the year.

9 Events subsequent to reporting date
Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Group increased its financing arrangements by $5 million to a total of
$55.5 million.

ersonal use only

Other than referred to above, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
to affect significantly the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in
flture financial years.

9

10 Likely developments and exbected results of operations
The Group will continue to pursue its policy of increasing the profitability and market share of its business segment within
Australia and New Zealand during the next financial year.

Further information about likely developments in the operations of the group and the expected results of those operations
in future financial years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the information would be likely to result
in unreasonable prejudice to the group.

=Or O
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11 Share options

Options granted to directors and officers of the Company

Options over unissued ordinary shares of Impact Capital Limited granted during or since the end of the financial year to
the most highly remunerated officers of the Company as pant of their remuneration were as follows:

Y

Options granted

Directors

R Templeton 1,110,000

Other executives

B Lyle 150,000

B Gebauers 120,000

A Hill 150,000
420.000

——————————

The options were granted under the Impact Capital Limited Executive Option Plan on 23 November 2007. Details of
options granted to the directors and the most highly remunerated officers of the Group can be found in section D of the
remuneration report on pages 11 - 12. No options have been granted to directors and officers of the Company since the
end of the year.

Unissued shares under options
Unissued ordinary shares of Impact Capital Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows:

Impact Capital Limited

Exercise price of Number of shares
Date Options granted Expiry date options under option

23 November 2007 23 November 2012 $0.645 420,000
23 November 2007 23 November 2012 $0.600 1,110,000

No options have been granted since the end of the financial year.

Shares issued on exercise of options
During or since the end of the financial year, the Group has not issued any ordinary shares as a result of the exercise of
options.

12 Directors’ interests

The relevant interest of each directer in the shares, debentures, interests in registered schemes and rights or options over
such instruments issued by the companies within the Group and other related bodies corporate, as notified by the directors
to the Australian Stock Exchange in accordance with S205G(1) of the Corporations Act 2001, at the date of this report is
as follows:

ersonal use on!

Impact Capital Limited

s

Options over
Ordinary shares ordinary shares

FD

t"—= KRich 100,000 -
- R Templeton 1,944,270 1,110,000
'} L Litzow 2,480,000 -
\o?/ U Laurie 75,000 -

LL,

Q)
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13 Earnings per share
2008 2007
Cents Cents

(a) Basic earnings per share

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

company 3.0 (0.5)
(b} Diluted earnings per share

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the

company 3.0 {0.5)

14 Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

During the financial year Impact Capital Limited paid a premium to insure the directors and officers of the Company and of
the Group against liabilities incurred by such an officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The officers
of the Group covered by the insurance policy include any person acting in the course of duties for the Group who is or was
a director, secretary or executive officer as well as senior executive staff. The contract of insurance prohibits the
disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.

The Company has agreed to indemnify its directors and the directors of its controlled entities against any liability to
another person (other than the Company or a refated body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors of the
Company and as directors of its controlled entities, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good
faith. The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet the full amount of any such liabilities, including costs and
expenses.

The Company has not entered into any agreement with their current auditers, KPMG, indemnifying against claims from
third parties arising from their report on the annual report, or their position as auditor.

15 Non-audit services
During the year KPMG, the Company's auditor, has performed certain other services in addition to their statutory duties.

The board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and in accordance with written
advice provided by resolution of the audit committee, is satisfied that the provision of those non-audit services during the
year by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 far the following reasons:

. all non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company and have
been reviewed by the audit committee to ensure they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor;
and

the non-audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set
out in Professional Statement F1 Professional independence, as they did not involve reviewing or auditing the
auditor's own work, acting in a management or decision making capacity for the Company, acting as an
advocate for the Company or jointly sharing risks and rewards.
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156 Non-audit services (continued)
Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Company, KPMG, and its related practices for audit and non-audit services
provided during the year are set out below. In addition, amounts paid to other auditors for the statutory audit have been

disclosed:
Consolidated
2008 2007
5 3
1. Audit services
Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia:

Audit and review of financial reports 108,887 114,758
Overseas KPMG firms:

Audit and review of financial reports 2,013 2229
Total remuneration for audit services 110,900 116,987
2. Services other than statutory audit
Other agsurance services
KPMG Australia:

Compliance assurance services 22,000 -
Other services
KPMG Australia:

Taxation compliance services 8,635 21,848

Corporate advisory services 197,036 124,649
Overseas KPMG firms:

Taxation compliance services 2.844 3,605
Total remuneration for audit-related services 230,515 150,100

16 Lead auditor's independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on
page 18.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

A >

" personal Use only

Kenneth R Rich
" "Pirector
Brisbane, 22 August 2008
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Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of
the Corporations Act 2001 to the directors of Impact Capital Limited

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2008, there
have been:

>g) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2007 in relation to
e the audit, and

E (b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.
KPMG

SE

-

I — Jillian Richards
Partner

Brisbane, 22 August 2008
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Corporate governance statement

This statement outlines the main corporate governance practices in place throughout the financial year which comply with
the ASX Corporate Council recommendations unless otherwise stated,

The board of directors
Role of the board
/\frhe beard's primary role is the protection and enhancement of long-term shareholder value.

———— To fulfil this role the board is also responsible for the overall corporate governance of the group including:
. Formulating corporate strategy and providing guidance on the business and affairs of the group,
E reviewing appropriate plans and annual budgets, including allocation of rescurces and capital expenditure;
monitoring and approving of financial reporting;
protecting and enhancing the reputation of the group;
© ensuring integrity of internal control and management reporting systems;
setting remuneration, appointing, removing and creating succession policies for directors and senior executives,
and
. monitoring of achievement of management's goals.
The beard has delegated responsibility for the operation and administration of the Company and the implementation of the
corporate strategy to the chief executive officer and the senior executives. The delegation policy is reviewed at least
annualily.
@ Board Processes
To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the board has established a number of board committees including a
nomination committee, a remuneration committee, a risk management and an audit committee. The board has also

established a framework for the management of the group including a system of internal control, a business risk
management process and the establishment of appropriate ethical standards.

The full board currently holds eleven scheduled meetings each year, plus strategy meetings and any extraordinary
meetings at such other times as may be necessary to address any specific significant matters that may arise.

The agenda for meetings is prepared in conjunction with the Chairperson, Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary.
Standing items include the Chief Executive Officer's report, financial reports, strategic matters, governance and
compliance. Submissions are circulated in advance, Executives are regularly involved in board discussions and directors
have other opportunities for contact with all employees.

The charter and policy of the Company's board and its various committees, together with the Board's Code of Conduct is
@ not currently available on the Company's website (www.impactcapital.com.au).

Director education

The Company has an informal process to educate new directors about the nature of the business, current issues,

corporate strategy and the expectations of the group concerning performance of directors. Directors are given access to
g continuing education opportunities to update and enhance their skills and knowledge.

Independent professional advice and access to company information

Each director has the right of access to all relevant Company information and to the Company’s executives and, subject to
G prior consultation with the chairperson, may seek independent professional advice from a suitably qualified adviser at the

Group's expense. The director must consult with an adviser suitably qualified in the relevant field, and obtain the

chairperson's approval of the fee payable for the advice before proceeding with the consultation. A copy of the advice

received by the director is made available to all other members of the board.

Composition of the board
The names of the directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are set out in the Directors’ report. The

CLL:' composition of the board is determined using the following principles:
. a maximum of seven directors with a range of qualifications and expertise;
. a minimum of two independent directors and the majority non-executive directors;
. one of the executive directors shall be the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer will not be the

Chairperson of the board:
U . enough directers to serve on various committees without overburdening the directors or making it difficult to fully
discharge their responsibilities;
s . an appropriate blend of expertise in accounting and finance, legal, marketing and sales and management at CEO-
level; and
. experience in finance or related industries.

Directors’ independence

An independent director is a director who is not a member of management (a non-executive director) and who:

. holds less than five percent of the voting shares of the Company and is not an officer of, or otherwise associated,
directly or indirectly, with a shareholder of more than five percent of the voting power of the Company;
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. has not within the last three years been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or another Group
member, or been a director after ceasing to hold any such employment;
. within the last three years has not been a principal ar employee of a material professional adviser or a material
consultant to the Company or any other Group member,
. is not a material supplier or customer of the Company or any other Group member, or an officer of or otherwise
\ associated directly or indirectly with a material supplier or custemer;
%\. has no material contractual arrangements with the Company or any other Group member other than as a director of
S— the Company; and
. is free from any interest and any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to,
materially interfere with the director’s ability to act in the best interests of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman is responsible for leading the board, ensuring directors are properly briefed in ali matters relevant to their
role and responsibilities, facilitating board discussions and managing the board's relationship with the company’s senior
executives.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for management of the day to day activities of the Group and implementation of
the Group's policies and strategies.

Conflict of interests

In accordance with the Corporations Act and the Company's Constitution, the directors must keep the board advised on an
ongoing basis of any interest that could potentially conflict with those of the Company., The board has developed
procedures to assist directors to disclose potential conflicts of interest.

Where the board believes that a significant conflict exists for a director on a board matter, the director concerned does not
receive the relevant board papers and is not present at the meeting whilst the item is considered. Details of director
related entity transactions with the Company and the group are set out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

————1 Nomination committee

The nomination committee oversees the appointment and induction process for directors. It also reviews board
succession plans and evaluates desirable competencies for board members. When a vacancy exists or there is a need
for particular skills, the committee determines the selection criteria based on the skills deemed necessary. The committee
identifies potential candidates with advice from external consultants if required, culminating in the appeintment of the most
suitable candidate. The terms and conditions of the appointment and retirement of non-executive directors are set out in a
letter of appointment, including expectations of attendance and preparation for all board meetings, minimum hourly
commitment, appointments to other boards, the procedures for dealing with conflicts of interest, and the availability of

@ independent professional advice. Board candidates must stand for election at the next general meeting of shareholders.

The committee undertakes an annual review of the performance of the board and the individual directors and examines
the appropriate mix of skills to ensure maximum effectiveness and contribution to the results of the Group. The
performance criteria takes into account each director's contribution to setting the direction, strategy and financial
objectives of the group and monitoring compliance with regulatory requirements and ethical standards. The annual review
also examines the independence status of each director.

The committee also conducts an annual review of the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary.

The board as a whole currently comprises the nomination committee and meets annually on these matters unless
otherwise required. The number of times the committee met during the year and committee members attendance record
O is disclosed in the table of directors’ meetings on page 7.

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee reviews and makes recommendations to the board on remuneration packages and policies
C o applicable to the executive officers and directors themselves of the Company and for the Group. |t is also responsible for
“—— share option schemes, incentive performance packages, superannuation entitlements, retirement and termination
@ entitlements, fringe benefits policies and professional indemnity and liability insurance policies.

The members of the remuneration committee during the year were:
‘ . Mr John Laurie (Chairperson) - Independent Non-Executive
HJ l_ . Mr Kenneth Rich - Independent Non-Executive

The remuneration committee meets at least annually or as otherwise required. The number of times the committee met
during the year and the committee members attendance record is disclosed in the table of directors’ meetings on page 7.

Audit committee

The board has established an audit committee which operates under a charter approved by the board. The commitiee
advises on the establishment and maintenance of a framework of internal control and appropriate ethical standards for the
management of the group.
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The members of the audit committee during the year were;

. Mr Kenneth Rich {Chairperson) - Independent Non-Executive
. Mr John Laurie - Independent Non-Executive
. Mr Lawrie Litzow - Independent Non-Executive

\\The external auditors, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer are invited to audit committee meetings

ersonal use only

o

at the discretion of the committee. The external auditors meet with the audit committee at least once a year without the
presence of any executive members. The number of times the committee met during the year and the commitiee
members attendance record is disclosed in the table of directors' meetings on page 7.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer declared in writing to the board that the financial records of the
Company for the financial year have been properly maintained, the Company’s financial report for the year ended 30 June
2008 comply with accounting standards and present a true and fair view of the Company’s financial condition and
operational resuits. This statement is required annually.

The responsibilities of the audit committee include:

reviewing the annual and half -year financial reports and other financial information distributed externally. This
includes approving new accounting policies to ensure compliance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs)
and assessing whether the financial information is adegquate for shareholders needs;

assessing the adequacy of the internal control framework and the Company's code of ethical standards. This
includes internal controls to deal with both the effectiveness and efficiency of significant business processes such
as the safeguarding of assets, maintenance of proper accounting records, the reliability of financia! information and
non-financial considerations such as the benchmarking of operational key performance indicators;

providing a forum for effective communication between the board and the external auditor;

assessing whether non-audit services provided by the external auditor are consistent with maintaining the external
auditor's independence. Each reporting period the external auditor provides an independence declaration in
relation to the audit or review;

. providing advice to the board in respect of whether the provision of the non-audit services by the external auditor is
compatible with the general standard of independence of auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001;

. organising, reviewing and reporting on any special reviews or investigations deemed necessary by the board,;

» ' monitoring the procedures to ensure compliance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ASX Listing Rules and all
other regulatory requirements; and

. review and monitor related party transactions and assess their propriety;

. addressing any matters outstanding with auditors, Australian Taxation Office, Australian Securities and Investment

Commission, ASX and financial institutions.

The audit committee reviews the performance of the external auditors on an annual basis and normally meets with them
during the year to:

discuss the external audit plans, identifying any changes in structure, operations, internal controls or accounting
policies that are likely to impact the financial statements and to review the fees proposed for the audit work to be
performed;

review the half-year and preliminary final report prior to lodgement with the ASX and any significant adjustments
required as a result of the auditor's findings and to recommend to the board approvatl of these documents, prior to
the anncuncement of the results;

reviews the draft annual report and recommend board approval of the financial report;

review the results and findings of the auditor, the adequacy of accounting and financial controls, and to monitor the
implementation of any recommendations made.

Risk assessment and management

The board has established a separate committee to oversee the establishment, implementation and annual review of the
Company's Risk Management System. The Risk Management System has been established to assess, monitor and
manage operational, corporate financial reporting and compliance risks for the group. The Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer have declared, in writing to the board, that the Company's financial reporting risk management and
associated compliance and controls have been assessed and found to be operating effectively. The operational and other
risk management compliance and controls have been assessed and found to be operating efficiently and effectively. All
risk assessments covered the whole financial year and period up to the signing of the annual financial report for all
material operations of the Group.

The compositions of the committee will consist of persens who have the relevant experience, qualifications and skills in the
business of the Company, its industry and business generally to competently discharge their responsibilities as a member
of the committee, Therefore the committee incorporates both directors and senior executive officars of the Group.

The members of the risk management committee during the year were:
. Mr Lawrie Litzow (Chairperson) - Independent Non-Executive Director
. Mr Kenneth Rich - Independent Non-Executive Director
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Mr Brian Gebauers - General Manager - Compliance & Special Projects
Ms Alison Hill - Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

The risk management committee is responsible for:

ly

Us© O

identification of the major risks to the Company and its business;

prioritising the risks according te perceived likelihood of occurrence and impact;
measurement of the financial and other effects of risks identified;

design of risk minimisation techniques and procedures;

providing recommendations to the board of risk minimisation implementation; and
implementing board approved plans and procedures.

The identification of risk and its management is an ongoing process in the context of a growing and changing business
and regulatory environment, and the committee is constantly re-examining its recommendations to ensure that new risks
and changes to existing risks are identified, understood and the appropriate responses structured and put into effect.

The risk management committee meets as often as considered necessary but not less than two times per year. The
number of times the committee met during the year and committee members' attendance record is disclosed in the table of
director's meetings on page 7.

Financial reporting

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have dectared, in writing to the board that the Company's
financial reports are founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and control which
implements the policies adopted by the board.

Monthly actual results are reported against budgets approved by the directors and revised forecasts for the year are

prepared regularly.
L Code of Conduct

*

For persona

Directors bear individual responsibilities for the performance of their duties before the law, and collective responsibility for
the behaviour of the board. The following code of conduct encompasses the legislative and commen law requirements of
directors, as well as the specific behaviours that the Company expects of its directors and is consistent with the code of
conduct as pronounced by the Australian Institute of Company Directors:

a director must act honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Company as a whale;

a director has a duty to use due care and diligence in fuffilling the functions of office and exercising the powers to
that office;

a director must use the powers of office for a proper purpose, in the best interests of the Company as a whole,

a director must recognise that the primary responsibility is to the company's shareholders as a whole but should,
where appropriate, have regard for the interests of all stakeholders of the Company,

a director must not make improper use of information acquired as a director;

a director must not take improper advantage of the position of director;

a director must not aflow personal interests, or the interests of any associated person, to conflict with the interests
of the Company,

a director has an obligation to be independent in judgement and actions and {o take all reasonable steps to be
satisfied as to the soundness of all decisions taken by the board;

confidential information received by a director in the course of the exercise of directional duties remains the
property of the Company from which it was obtained and it is improper to disclose it, or allow it to be disclosed,
unless that disclosure has been authorised by that Company, or the person from whom the information is provided,
or is required by law;

a director should not engage in conduct likely to bring discredit upon the Company; and

a director has an obligation, at all times, to comply with the spirit, as well as the letter of the law and with the
principles of the code.
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Trading in general Company securities by directors and employees

The board has approved and communicated a policy on the trading of its securities by directors and employees which
prohibits directors and employees from dealing in Company shares during the period commencing 60 days prior to the
release of the Company's results, and at any other time during the year whilst in possession of price sensitive information.

%\The policy statement applies to directors, officers and employees ("designated officers”) of the Company. This policy
/‘gatement also applies to directors, officers and employees of any subsidiary company of Impact Capital.

L ———=1 The Corporaticns Act specifically prohibits a person from purchasing or selling shares where such person {called "an
insider") possesses information that is not generally available but, if the information were generally available, would have a
{!( material effect on the price of shares in the Company.

This prohibition extends to external advisers and designated officers who should be aware of the need to enforce
confidentiality against such external advisers, where appropriate.

Designated officers must provide notification to the Company Secretary of intended trading activity in the Company's
shares. Confirmation of the share trading transaction must be provided to the Company Secretary within 4 business days
of the transaction.

A trading "black-out" will occur during the following times:

. 60 days prior to the release of the half-year and 30 June preliminary financial statements and the dividend
announcement;

. 60 days prior to any dividend announcement; and

. 30 days prior to any intending announcement which a reasonable person would expect to have a material effect on

the price or value of the Company's shares.

The chairperson may exercise his discretion to permit trading by designated officers in specific circumstances. Such
circumstances include financial hardship or circumstances of a persenal nature.

This trading policy applies to financial products issued or created over the Company's shares by third parties.

The board recognises the benefits of equity participation by employees and directors and encourages employees and
directors to acquire equity in the Company in the appropriate circumstances.

Communication with shareholders

The board provides shareholders with information using a Continuous Disclosure Policy which includes identifying matters
that may have a material effect on the price of the Company's securities, notifying them to the Australian Stock Exchange
("ASX"}, pasting them on the Company's website, and issuing media releases. In summary the Continuous Disclosure
Policy operates as follows:

. the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary are responsible for interpreting the company's policy and
where necessary informing the board. The Company Secretary is responsible for all communications with the ASX;
the annual report is distributed to all shareholders and the ASX;

the half-year report contains summarised financial information and a review of operations of the consclidated entity
during the period. The half-year reviewed report is lodged with the Australian Securities and Investment
Commission and the ASX, and sent to any shareholder who requests it;

arsonal use o

. proposed major changes in the group which may impact on share ownership rights are submitted to a vote of
shareholders;
C) . all announcements made to the market are placed on the Company's website after they are released to the ASX,;
[ information provided to analysts or the media during briefings are released to the ASX;
. notices of the annual general meeting and other meetings of members are sent to all shareholders; and
C\~ . the external auditor attends the annual general meetings to answer questions concerning the conduct of the audit,
S the preparation and content of the auditor's report, accounting policies adopted by the Company and the
independence of the auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.
\Lj The board encourages full participation of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, to ensure a high level of
. accountability and identification with the consolidated entity’s strategy and goals.
ﬂ_j The shareholders are requested to vote on the appointment and aggregate remuneration of directors, the Remuneration

- -~ report and changes to the Constitution. Copies of the Constitution are available to any shareholder who requests it.
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Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes $ $ $ 3
>Irl1terest income 11,369,572 6,961,125 10,893,518 6,702,347
Interest expense (3,391,130} {1,426 512) (3,391,118} {1.426.512)
""" Netinterest income 7,978,442 5,534,613 7,502,400 5,275,835
E Fee income 982,461 427,079 947,335 413,292
Other operating gains / (losses) 5 (807,817} 352,307 (727,791} -
Expenses
Employee benefits expense (2,846,372) {1,514,254) (2,807,028} (1,486,474)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (121,522) (74,839) (121,029} (74,674)
Impairment of loans and advances (300,249) (329,343) (350,519} (254,594)
Loan documentation expenses {4,000) (51,806) {4,000} (33,988)
Marketing expenses (444,053) (565,164) (394,368) (551,807)
Occupancy expenses (245,748) (187,374) (239,654} (187,374)
General and administrative expenses (942 856) (662,969) (922,355} (647,134)
Other expenses (96,228) (64,817) (95,517} (64,341)
Change in fair value of investments 12 {9,444) (296,8186) (9,444) (296,816)
Impairment of investments 12 - {2,131,865) - (2,668,435}
Profit / (loss) before income tax 3,142,614 434,752 2,778,030 (576,510)
" Income tax expense 7 (1,215.473) (730.876) {1,107,126) {691,082}
Profit / (loss) for the period 1,927,141 (296,124) 1,670,904 {1,267 592}
Cents Cents
Earnings / (loss) per share
Basic eamings / (loss) per share 8 3.0 (0.5)
Diluted earnings / {loss) per share 8 3.0 (0.5)

The above income sfatements should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes.

Delrsone

.
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‘Foreign exchange translation differences
T Total income/(expense) recognised directly in

equity

Profit/{Loss) for year
Total recognised incomef/{expense)

Balance at 30 June 2007

Balance at 1 July 2007

Foreign exchange translation differences
Total income/(expense) recognised directly in

equity

Profit/(Loss) for year
Total recognised incomel/(expense)

Share-based payment

Balance at 30 June 2008

The Company

Balance at 1 July 2006
Profit/{Loss) for year
Total recognised income/(expense}

Balance at 30 June 2007

Balance at 1 July 2007
Profit/(Loss) for year
Total recognised income/(expense}

Share-based payment

Balance at 30 June 2008

Impact Capital Limited
Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Share based

Contributed Translation payments Retained
equity reserve reserve profits Total
$ $ $ $

18,361,097 - - 1043998 19,405,095
- 1534 - - 1.534
- 1,634 - - 1,634
- - - _(296.124) {296, 124)
- 1,534 - _{296,124) {294,590)

18,361,097 1,534 -

747,874 19,110,505

18,361,097 1,534 -

747,874 19,110,505

- {156 540) - - {156,540)
- (156,540) - - {156,540)
- - - 1,927 141 1,927,141
- {156,540} = 1,927.141 1,770,601
- - 93,062 - 93,062

18,361,097 _ {155,006} 93,062

2675015 20,974,168

Share
based Retained
Contributed payments  profits/
equity reserve (losses) Total
$ $ $
24,580,445 - {6,352,826) 18,227,619
- - {1,267,592) (1,267,592}
- - {1,267.592) (1,267,592)
24,580,445 - {(7620418) 16,960,027
24,580,445 - (7,620,418) 16,960,027
- - _1.670904 _ 1670904
- - _1,670904 _ 1,670,904
- 93062 - 93 062

24,580,445 __ 93,062

{5,949,514) _18,723,993

D U The statements of changes in equify should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets classified as held for sale
Net loans and advances

Other financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Income tax payable

Employee benefits

Total liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Contributed equity
Reserves

Retained profits/{losses)
Totat equity

Notes

17
18
19
20

Impact Capital Limited

Balance sheets

As at 30 June 2008

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
1,366,009 2,318,752 1,353,914 2,297,511
- 474,774 - 474,774
64,084,500 38,958,756 61,341,351 37,922,245
- 1,601,157 4,883,321 6,484,478
1,055,490 2,914 2,784,270 322817
622,957 467,173 606,539 408,440
188,596 65,634 190,982 67,821
1,146,493 994,395 193,055 40,511
311,597 332,677 307,599 331,433
68,775,642 45216232 71,661,031 48,350,030
673,571 256,488 5,809,217 5,540,764
45,455,757 24,953,602 45,455,757 24,953,602
1,333,116 820,217 1,333,034 820,217
339,030 75420 339,030 75,420
47,801,474 26,105727 52,937,038 31,390,003
20,974,168 18,110,505 18,723,993 16,960,027
18,361,097 18,361,097 24,580,445 24 580,445
(61,944) 1,534 93,062 -
) )

20,974 168 19,110,505 18,723,993 16,960,027

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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>(§ash flows from operating activities
Interest and fees received

Interest paid
Payments to suppliers and employees

Income taxes paid
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for leasehold improvements, plant
and equipment
Payments for acquisition of equity investments
Payments for other assets
Payments for intangible assets
Loans to / from controlled entities
Proceeds from disposal of investment held for
sale
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary, net of
cash disposed
Loans repaid by other entities
Net funds advanced to clients

Loans advanced to clients

Loans repaid by clients

Loans purchased from third party
Release of restricted use bank deposits
Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from barrowings

Redemption of convertible notes
Repayment of borrowings

Payment of transaction costs

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the financial year

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and
¢ash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

U

'~

71 The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

30

9

Consolidated

Impact Capital Limited
Cash flow statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
7,492,797 4,393,421 6,964,566 3,095,818
(2,332,672)  (1.303,193)  (2,332,661)  (1,303,193)
{4,053,243) _ (3,105022) __(3,942,765) __ (3,032,502)
1,106,882 (14,794) 689,140 (339,877)
{860,000) (369.307) ___ (860.000) (362 454)
246,882 (384.101) {170,860) (702,331)
(165,999) (44,183) (165,999) (42,230)
- (2,567) - (2,567)
(450) (55.807) (450) (55,807)
(221,631) (50,052) (221,631} (50,052)
- - (1,404,633) 1,192,298
237,864 - 237,864 -
- 617,708 - 617,708
- 902,810 . 902,810
(46,885,450). (33,788,706)  (45,741,882)  (33,975,326)
27,661,270 15983083 26,808,813 15,277,386
(1,638,344) - . -
- 1,194,103 - 1,194,103
(20,912,740) _(15243,611) _(20,487,918) _ (14,941,677)
47,500,000 20,000,000 47,500,000 20,000,000
- (3,380,000} - (3,380,000)
(27,500,000} (200,000)  (27,500,000) (200,000)
(284,819) (77.273) {284,819) (77,273)
19715181 _ 16342727 _ 19,715181 _ 16342727
(950,677) 715,015 (943,597) 698,719
2,318,752 1,603,737 2,297,511 1,598,792
(2,066} - - -
1,366,009 2.318.752 1,353,914 2297 513
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

1 Significant accounting policies

Impact Capital Limited (the ‘Company'} is a company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the 'Group’) and the Group's interest in associates.

————— The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 22 August 2008.

{a) Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards ('AASBs') (including Australian Interpretations) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board {'AASB') and the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial report of the Group and the financial report of
the Company comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

(i} Reverse acquisition accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using reverse acquisition accounting. In reverse acquisition
accounting, the cost of the business is deemed to have been incurred by the legal subsidiary (the acquirer for accounting
purposes) in the form of equity instruments issued to the owners of the legal parent (the acquiree for accounting
purposes).

The consolidated financial statements from 1 July 2005, the date of the reverse acquisition, are issued in the name of
Impact Capital Limited as legal parent, but represent a consolidation of the financial statements of the legal subsidiary
ACN 109 006 126 Pty Ltd (formerly Impact Funding Limited) and its controlled entities as follows:

. the assets and liabilities of the legal subsidiary are recognised and measured in the consolidated financial
statements at their pre-combination carrying amounts;

. the retained earnings and other equity batances recognised in the consclidated financial statements are the
retained earnings and other equity balances of the legal subsidiary immediately before the business combination;
and

. the amount recognised as issued equity instruments are determined by adding to the issued equity of the legal

subsidiary immediately before the business combination, the cost of the combination.

(if) Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency
and the functional currency of the majority of the group.

sonal use on

(iii} Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for available for sale financial
assets, assets classified as held for sale, other financial assets (including derivatives} and share-based payments which
are measured at fair value,

The group has not elected to adopt any accounting standards or amendments to standards or interpretations issued prior
to the date of this report where application is not mandatory for the year ended 30 June 2008.

: (iv} Early adoption of standards and interpretations

(v) Critical accounting estimates
T The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AASB's requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
(.- Italso requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
@ the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

Mo The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
oo recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the pericd of the
L] l revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(vi) Application
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements and have been applied consistently by Group entities.
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Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008
{continued)

1 Significant accounting policies {continued)

(b} Principles of consoclidation

{i} Subsidiaries

— ‘Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases.

In the Company's financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost.

(i) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
@ are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(¢} Foreign currency

@@ (i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies of Group entities at the respective exchange
rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are translated to functional currency at the foreign exchange rate at that date. Foreign exchange differences
arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated to the functional currency using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair vatue are
translated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Impact Capital Limited
——
. @ (i) Foreign operations
| The assets and liabilities of foreign operaticns, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are
| translated to Australian dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
5( operations, excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated to Australian dollars at rates
approximating the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation
are recognised directly in the foreign currency translation reserve which is a separate component of equity. When a
@ foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the foreign currency translation reserve is
transferred to profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, the
settlement of which is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, are considered to form part of a net investment
in a foreign operation and are recognised directly in equity in the Translation Reserve.

@ (d) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets are derecognised if the Group's contractual rights to the cashflows from the financial assets expire or if the Group

! ! transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining contral or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.
Regular way purchases and sales are accounted for at trade date ie. the date that the Group commits itself to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group's obligations specified in the contract expire or are
discharged or cancelled.

L1 (i) Non-derivative financial instruments
f’ 3 Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity securities, trade and other receivables, loans and
Q advances, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, and trade and cther payables.

Py

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
{ ] form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the

purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Accounting for income and expenses from non-derivative financial instruments is discussed at note 1(n} and 1(0).

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value, plus for instruments not at fair value through profit
and loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments
are measured as below.
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

>\(d) Financial instruments (continued)

) Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

A financial instrument is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or if so designated by management. Upon initial recognition the financial instrument is measured at fair
value. Subsequent changes therein are recognised in profit or loss. Attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss when incurred.

. Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial instruments classified as being available-for-sale are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses. When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

. Loans and advances
Loans and advances are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment losses.

(i) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial
instruments are stated at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

(e} Share Capital

()  Ordinary shares
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction
from equity, net of any related income tax benefit.

(i) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

() Fair value measurement

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value for financial assets and
liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the methods as
below.

(i) Financial instruments traded in an active market
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and
available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

(i}) Financial instruments not traded in an active market

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each balance date.

4-(jij) Other receivables and trade payables

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of other receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for simitar financial instruments.

r personal use oniy

(iv) Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee share options is measured using the Black-Scholes and Binomial option pricing models.
Measurement inputs include the exercise price of the instrument, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the share
price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free
interest rate for the term of the option. Service and non-market conditions attached to the transactions are not taken into
account in determining fair value.

(

o)

F

(v) Loans and advances
The fair value of loans and advances is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate
of interest at the reporting date.
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

{continued)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

{g) Amortised cost measurement
) >‘5he amortised cost is the amount at which a financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal
] repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any difference between
the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

{h} Property, plant and equipment

(i) Owned assets
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Gains and losses on disposat of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised within "other income” in profit or

@ loss.
(i) Subsequent costs

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an itemn of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such

); an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the itern will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other costs are recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

———— (iii} Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an
item of property, plant and equipment. The range of depreciation rates used for each class of asset, in the current and
comparative periods, are as follows:

Furniture and fittings 7.5-30%
Office equipment 11-40%

The residual value, if not insignificant, is reassessed annually.

(i) Intangible assets

() Goodwill

Goodwill and negative goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. Goodwill

represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
v liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. When the excess is negative (negative goodwill}, it is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
@ Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the
carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment.

EO' (i) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite lives, are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. ‘

Q (ifi) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embeodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure including expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

{iv) Amortisation

H Amartisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets

{ ~—J ‘ﬁl—j unless such lives are indefinite. Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested for
impairment at each balance sheet date. Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Computer software 2.5to 5 years
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j} Assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

C///"\ﬁssets {or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities) that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale
rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale.

-

applicable accounting standards. Then, on initial classification as held for sate, assets are recognised at the lower of

/——- Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the assets is brought up to date in accordance with
g carrying amount and fair value less ¢osts to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale are included in profit or loss, even when there is a revaluation.
The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent remeasurement.

(k) Impairment

@ (i) Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that itis
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had

@ a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its current fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are
T———1 assessed collectively in groups that share simifar credit risk characteristics,

All impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial
asset previously recognised in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost and available-for-sale financial assets that are debt
securities, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the

reversal is recognised directly in equity.

© (i) Non-financial assets
The carrying amount of the Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting
@ date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, recoverable amount is
(T estimated at each reporting date.
i

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
G use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For
the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
E(w_)inﬂows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-
generating unit").

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
1 For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
"7 identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
~ "> generating units). Impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
O‘ cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goedwill allocated to cash-generating units

-7 (group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

l U Impairment losses, other than in respect of goodwill, are reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss has
L decreased or no longer exist and if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
—--——- An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the camrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

1 Significant accounting policies {continued)

() Employee bensfits
ﬁ(i) Short-term benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave represent present obligations resulting from
— employees’ services provided to reporting date, are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and
salary rates that the Group expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers compensation
insurance and payroll tax. Non-accumulating non-maonetary benefits, are expensed based ¢n the net marginal cost to the
Group as the benefits are taken by the employees.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the cbligation can be estimated reliably.

(i) Defined contribution superannuation funds
@ A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to
@@ defined contribution superannuation funds are recognised as an expense in the income statement when they are due.

(lii} Share-based payments
The fair value of options granted under the Impact Capital Limited Executive Option Scheme is recognised as an

)S employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and
recognised over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest, except for those that fail to
vest due to market conditions not being met.

(iv} Profit-sharing and bonus plans

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

{(m) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
reliably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

gé (n) Revenue

(i} interestincome
@ Interest income is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the
: carrying amount of the financiat asset. The calculation of the estimated future cash receipts includes ascertainable fees

sonal

received and transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset, as well as any
discounts or premiums.

The effective interest rate is established on initial recognition of the financial asset and is not revised subsequently.

T~ {ii) Feeincome
C\ Fee income, including account servicing and reassessment fees are recognised as the related services are performed.

Notwithstanding the fact that company policy is to determine all fees received by reference to reimbursement of actual
costs, for accounting purposes ascertainable fees received are recognised as interest income under the effective interest

[ rate method.
L": (i) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the income is established, which in the case of quoted securities
is the ex-dividend date.
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{continued}

1 Significant accounting policies {continued)

(o) Expenses

y_ ~(i} Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense
and spread over the lease term.

(ii) Interest expense
Interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred and included
in interest expense.

(p) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences; initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax autharity on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
{o the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(i} Tax consolidation

The Company and its wholly owned Australian resident subsidiaries are part of a tax-consolidated group. As a
consequence, all members of the tax-consolidated group are taxed as a single entity. The head entity within the tax-
consolidated group is Impact Capital Limited.

Current tax expense, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arising from the temporary differences of the members
of the tax-consolidated group are recognised in the seperate financial statements of the members of the tax-consolidated
group using the 'seperate taxpayer within group' approach by reference to the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities
in the seperate financial staternents of each entity and the tax values applying under tax consolidation.

Any current tax liabilities {or assets} and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the subsidiaries is assumed
by the head entity in the tax-consolidated group and are recognised by the company as amounts payable (receivable) to /
(from) other entities in the tax-consolidated group in conjunction with any tax funding arrangement amounts (refer below).

Any difference between these amounts is recognised by the Company as an equity contribution or distribution.

The Company recognises deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the tax-consolidated group to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits of the tax-consolidated group will be available against which the asset can be
utilised. Any subsequent period adjustments to deferred tax assets arising from unused tax fosses as a result of revised
assessments of the probability of recoverability is recognised by the head entity only.

or personal use on
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

{p) Income tax (continued)
>{H} Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax sharing arrangements

The head entity, in conjunction with cther members of the tax-consclidated group, has entered into a tax funding
b arrangement which sets out the funding obligations of members of the tax-consolidated group in respect of tax amounts.
The tax funding arrangements require payments to / from the head entity equal to the current tax liability (asset) assumed
by the head entity and any tax loss deferred tax asset assumed by the head entity, resulting in the head entity recognising
an inter-entity receivable / (payable) equal in amount to the tax liability (asset) assumed. The inter-entity receivables /
@ (payables) are at call.

Contributions to fund the current tax liabilities are payable as per the tax funding arrangement and reflect the timing of the
head entity's obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to the relevant tax authorities.

The head entity in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group has also entered into a tax-sharing

@ agreement. The tax-sharing agreement provides for the determination of the allocation of the income tax liabilities
between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in
the financial statements in respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts under the tax sharing agreement is
considered remote.

{(q) Goods and services tax

U

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as
— part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash
flows.

{r) Earnings per share

dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or lass attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares which comprises convertible notes and share options granted to employees.

@ The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share {EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by

{s) Segment reporting

segment), or in providing products or services within a particutar economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Group's primary format for segment
reporting is based on geographic segments.

;‘Oz A segment is a distinguishable component of the group that is engaged either in providing products or services (business

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

o
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
@ aliocated on a reasonable basis. The allocations recognise that whilst costs may have been incurred by the Group, they
may relate to the operating activities of another geographical segment. Unallocated items comprise corporate assets and

[ u expenses.
l_ -~ _]j Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and eguipment, and
intangible assets other than goodwill.
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1 Significant accounting policies {continued)

(ty New accounting standards and interpretations

>§er{ain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2008
reporting periods. The Group's and the Company's assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations
is set out below.

(i) AASB 8 Operating Segments

AASB 8 will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. AASB 8 will result in a significant

change in the approach to segment reporting, as it requires adoption of a 'management approach’ to reporting on financial
@ performance. The information being reported will be based on what the key decision makers use internally for evaluating

segment performance and deciding how teo allocate resources to operating segments. Application of AASB 8 may result in

different segments, segment results and different types of information being reported in Note 4 of the financial report.

(i) Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements

The revised AASB 101 will be applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and introduces
as a financial statement the "statement of comprehensive income". The revised standard does not change the
recognition, measurement or disclosure of transactions and events that are required by other AASBs. The Group has not
yet determined the potential effect of the revised standard on the Group's disclosures.

(i) Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations

The revised AASB 3 will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and changes the application
of acquisition accounting for business combinations and the accounting for minority interests. This revised standard is not
expected to have any impact on the financial report.

{ivi Revised AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The revised AASB 127 will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and changes accounting
for investments in subsidiaries. The Group has not yet determined the potential effect of the revised standard on the
Group's financial report.

{v) AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard - Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

This amendment will be applicable for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and changes the
measurement of share-based payments that contain non-vesting conditions. This revised standard is not expected to
have any impact on the financial report.

rsonal use
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2 Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (foreign exchange risk, equities price risk and

interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
ithe Board of Birectors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.
{————— The Board has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing a robust structure for the
determination of risk appetite and the monitoring, reporting and escalation of risks, including both operational and financial
@ risks. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The committee is also responsible for risk management policies which are established to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The key objective of these policies is to mitigate these risks, reduce
volatility on financial performance, to ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained at all times to meet the Group's obligations
and execute the Group's operational strategy whilst optimising investment return for shareholders.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's

@ activities.
There have been no significant changes in the types of financial risks the Group is exposed to since the prior year.

@ (a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will
affect the Group's financial position through fluctuations in the fair value or future cashflows of financial instruments,

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign exchange risk arises from the translation of its capital invested in overseas operations into AUD at
balance date (translation risk) or from foreign currency exchange rate movements on specific cash flow transactions
{transaction risk).

| EE——

The Group's foreign exchange nisk is currently limited to exposure to New Zealand dollars which occurs as a result of its
investment in operations domiciled in that country. The Group does not hedge the capital invested in overseas cperations,
thereby accepting the foreign currency translation risk on invested capital.

| contracts are denominated in Australian dollars wherever possible. Consequently, the Group does not enter into

| derivatives to manage foreign currency exposure.

| The table below summarises the impact of a 10% movement in currency rates against the Australian dollar, with all other
variables held constant, on the Group's post tax profit for the year and on equity and has been calculated on net foreign
investment balances at the reporting date. A sensitivity of 10% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given
the current level of volatility in the relevant exchange rates observed both on a historical basis and expectations of future

movements. It is assumed that the relevant change occurs as at the reporting date.

© The Company and Group's operations do not generally expose the entity to significant foreign exchange transaction risk as

Impact on post-tax profit Impact on equity

2008 2007 2008 2007
@_ s 5 s 3

~— Consolidated

+ 10% against $AUD - - 192,000 35,500
CL_, - 10% against $AUD - - {157,000) {29,000)
S ——
© There is no impact on the Company's post tax profit and equity as the Company is not subject to any foreign exchange
11 risk.
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{continued)

2 Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Equily securities price nsk
>Equity price risk arises from the risk that the fair value of equity investments will decrease as a result of changes in the

1

On

salue of individual stocks. The Group held all of its equity investments as available for sale or other financial assets at fair
value. Such assets were scld during the current financial year.

The table below summarises the impact of a 20% movement in equity prices with all other variables held constant on the
Group's and the Company's post tax profit for the year and on equity, and has been calculated on equity investments held
at the reporting date. A sensitivity of 20% has been selected based on the volatility of the relevant security exchanges
observed both on a historical basis and with regard to market expectations for future movements.

Impact on post-tax profit Impact on equity

2008 2007 2008 2007

> $ $ $ $
G /1 Consolidated

-7+ 20% - 386,700
@ N - 20% (386.700) -

2/

Company

&+ 20% - 386,700
—\’} -20% {386,700) -

arsonal

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk to earnings from the margin between different yield curves arising from movements in the
absolute levels of interest rates and the volatility of interest rates. Cashflow interest rate risk arises from financial
instruments with a floating interest rate whereas fair value interest rate risk arises from fixed interest rate financial
instruments.

Loans and advances are issued by the Group and Company at fixed interest rates and so do not expose the entity to cash
flow interest rate risk. In addition, these loans and advances are at amortised cost and therefore do not expose the entity
to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's and Company's interest rate risk therefore arises predominantly from the interest bearing financial liabilities
which are issued at a variable rate and cash and cash equivalents which are held at a variable rate. The Group does not
currently utilise derivative instruments to manage this risk, however this risk is minimised by the Group adjusting the fixed
interest rate charged on new loans and advances to maintain net interest margin. Refer to Note 18.

The table below summarises the impact of 2 movement of 100 basis points in variable interest rates, with ali other
variables held constant on the Group's and the Company's post tax profit for the year and on equity, calculated on the net
interest bearing financial instruments held at the reporting date. A sensitivity of 100 basis points has been selected based
on the current level of both short term and long term Australian dollar interest rates.

v

@ I

Impact on post-tax profit Impact on equity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
Consolidated
— + 1% (100 basis points) (305,500) (158,700} -
- 1% (100 basis points) 305,500 (158,700} -
Company
M + 1% (100 basis points) (305,500} (158,900} -
LI | 3% (100 basis points) 305,000 158,900 5
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2 Financial risk management (continued)

%b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a debtor or other counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

T

e

I

O

=

arsonal use on

obligations.

The Group and Company's credit risk arises predominately from loans and advances. This credit risk is minimised by the
Group's lending model, which unlike the majority of consumer lending is not reliant on the financial position of the borrower
for repayment and largely remains unaffected by consumer sentiment or market conditions. In the case of the Group and
the Company, the loans are advanced against the anticipation of a future event with the loan risks and credit assessment
fundamentally related to the outcome of that specified event and with repayment sourced from the resultant agreed or
judicially determined settlement outcome and proceeds. In addition, a secondary source of repayment is available as
Impact Capital Limited has recourse against the borrower for any shortfall of repayment, except in the case of personal
injury claims.

As a further mitigant to credit risk the amount advanced is limited to a maximum of 30% of the lower range of expected
settlement outcome, which is calculated through a known formula and methodology utilised within the judicial system.

The Group and the Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to a single borrower or legal practice.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of financial assets, net of any provisions.

(c} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due because of the lack
of liquid assets or access to adequate capital and debt facilities on acceptable terms. The Group's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient funds available on a timely basis to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed caonditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation, where such funds include liquid assets, undrawn committed funded facilities, borrowing capacity and a
defined surplus of cash. To manage this risk, management continuously monitors forecast and actual cash flows.

Financing arrangements
A single financier provided all of the Groups borrowing facilities as at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007,

The Group and the Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the reporting date:

Consolidated Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $

Floating rate
- Expiring beyond one year (Commercial advance
facility) 5,356,419 - 5,356,419 -
- Expiring beyond one year {(Bank bill facility) - 15.000.000 - 15,000,000

5,356,419 15.000.000 5,356,419 15,000,000

The commercial advance facility may be drawn at any time up until 4th September 2010 and is subject to an annual
review.

In addition to the undrawn borrowing facilities, the Group maintains cash deposits as detailed in Note 9.

Subsequent to the reporting date the Group was granted an increase of $5 million to its commercial advance facility with
no change to its expiry date.
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2 Financial risk management (continued)

{c¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

-Maturities of financial liabilities
Refinancing risk, a subset of liquidity risk, is the risk that the maturity profile of the Group and Company's financial

liabilities makes it difficult to refinance or rollover maturing debt, in that it creates an excessive exposure to potentially
unfavourable market conditions at any given time.

The tables below analyse the Group’s and the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

The liquidity risk inherent in these cash flows is mitigated by the maturity profile of the Group's financial assets {principally
loans and advances) which are of a short-term nature and hence the funds required to meet the Group's financial
obligations are expected to be received well in advance of the contractual maturity dates of the financial liabilities. [n
further managing liquidity risk, the refinancing of the Group's debt facilities is undertaken well in advance of the maturity
date of that financial liability.

Group - At 20 June 2008

2l use only

A

=
T
U

Less than 6 6-12 Between 1 Between 2 No term Total Carrying
months months and 2 years | and 3 years contractual Amount
cash flows |. (assets)/
liabilities
3 $ $ $ 5 5 $
Trade and other payables 673,571 - - - - 673,571 673,571
Commercial advance facility 3,013,243 2,292,126 4,620,573 | 45,849 445 -| 55,775,387 | 45455757
Total 3,686,814 2,292,126 4,620,573 | 45,849,445 -| 56,448,958 | 46,129,328
E 3 Group - At 30 June 2007 Lessthan 6 |6-12 months| Between1 | Between2 { No Tem Total Carrying
C months and 2 years | and 3 years contractual Amount
3 cash flows (asseis)/
liabilities
{ C )) $ 5 $ $ $ $ 5
Trade and other payables 256,488 - - - - 256,488 256,488
“ Bank bill facility 846,712 1,024,658 | 26,018,265 - -| 27,889,635] 24,953,602
7/ Total 1,103,200 1,024,658 | 26,018,265 - -| 28146,123| 25,210,090
Company - At 30 June 2008 | | o5 than 6 6-12 Botween1 | Between2 | Noterm Total Carrying
D months months and 2 years | and 3 years contractual Amount
. cash flows {assets)/
liabilities
) $ 5 5 s 5 5 $
——Trade and other payables 659,829 - - - - 659,829 659,829
Loans from controlled entities - - - - 5,149,388 5,149,388 5,149,388
Commercial advance facility 3,013,243 2,292,126 4,620,573 | 45,849,445 -| 55,775,387 | 45,455,757
— Total 3,673,072 2,292,126 4,620,573 | 45,849,445 5,149,388 | 61,584,604 | 51,264,974
\
@ Company - At 30 June 2007 Lessthan 6 |6 - 12 months| Between1 | Between 2 No term Total Carrying
months and 2 years | and 3 years contractual Amount
cash flows {assets)/
liahilities
$ $ 3 L 3 3 3
Trade and other payables 248,003 - - - - 248,003 248,003
Loans from controlled entities - - - - 5,292,761 5,292,761 5,292,761
Bank bill facility 846,712 1,024.658 | 26,018,265 - -] 27,889.635] 24,953,602
Total 1,094,715 1,024,658 | 26,018,265 - 5,292,761 | 33,430,399 | 30,494,366
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
\expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under
>~ the circumstances.

Y

———— Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development, selection and disclosure of the Group's critical
accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates. The estimates and judgements that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a} Impairment of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives

The Group assesses whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least annually in
accordance with the accounting pelicy in Note 1. These calculations involve an estimation of the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating units to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated. Refer to Note 15
for details of these assumptions and the potential impact of changes to the assumptions.

(b) Impairment of loans and advances

The Group continually assesses whether loans and advances are impaired in accordance with the accounting policy in
Note 1. These calculations involve an estimate of the recoverable amount of either the individual loan or advance and
portfclios of loans and advances with similar risk profiles.

(c} Valuation of options in impact Holding (UK) Pic

In 2007 the fair value of options over ordinary shares in Impact Heldings (UK) Plc has been measured based on the
Binominal option pricing model. This mode! requires certain inputs including the expected volatility of the price of the
underlying security to be calculated with reference to historical votatility, which given the limited history of the company as
a listed entity, has been estimated with reference to the trading history of available comparable securities.

(d) Valuation of share-based payments

The fair value of options granted under the Impact Capital Limited Executive Option Scheme have been measured using
the Black-Scholes and Binomial option pricing models. These models require the estimation of certain inputs including the
expected price volatility of the undertying share and the expected dividend vield.

arsonal use on
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
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|
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(continued)

4 Segment reporting

Segment information is presented only in respect of the Group's geographical segments as it operates wholly within the
l>\business segment of pre-settlement lending. This format is based on the group's management and internal reporting
structure.
IA
———— In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location
of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

(a) Geographical segments

United :
2008 Australasia Kingdom * Consolidated
$ $ $

External interest income 11,369,572 - 11,369,572
External interest expense (3,391,130) - (3,391,130}
Fee income 982 461 - 982 461
Net interest and fee income 8,960,903 - 8,960,903

Segment result 4157.273 {0.444) 4,147 829
Unallocated revenue less unallocated expenses (1,005,215)
Profit before income tax 3,142,614
Income tax expense (1.215.473)

Net profit for the year 1,927 141

Segment assets 68,775 642 - 68,775,642
Unallocated assets

 — N
Total assets 68.775.642
Segment liabilities 47,801,474 - 47,801,474

@

Unallocated liabilities - -
47 801,474

Total liabilities .

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, intangibles and other
segment assets 387,630 - 387,630

Depreciation and amortisation expense 121,522 - 121,522

Impairment losses 300,249 - 300,249

Cash flow information
Net cash flows from operating activities 246 882 - 246 882

Net cash flows from investing activities (21,155 ,604) 237 864 (20,817 740)

Net cash flows from financing activities 19.715.181 - 19,715,181
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30 June 2008
{continued)
4 Segment reporting {continued)
United
2007 Australasia Kingdom * Consolidated
- 3 $ 5
2777771 External interest income 6,961,125 - 6,061,125
External interest expense (1,426,512) - (1,426,512)
Fee income 427 079 - 427 079
Net interest and fee income 5961.692 - 5 961 692
Segment result 2,674,388 {2,428.681) 245,707
Q Unallocated revenue less unallocated expenses 189,045
Profit before income tax 434,752
Income tax expense (730,876)

Net profit for the period (296 124)

@ Segment assets 42 673,128 2,075,931 44,749,059

Unallocated assels 467,173

Tota! assets 45216232
O Segment liabilities 25285510 - 25,285,510

Unallocated liabilities 820217

ig Total liabilities 26105727
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, intangibles and other segment

assets 94 235 - 94 235

L2 Depreciation and amortisation expense 74,839 - 74,839

impairment losses 329,343 2131865 2 461,208

Cash flow information
Net cash flows from operating aclivities {384 101) - {384 101)

Net cash flows from investing activities (15243 611) - (15243 611}

Impact Capital Limited
|
|
|

segment therefore reflects any impairment of, change in fair value of and dividend income from the continuing ownership of these
investments. Any gain/{loss) on disposal or dilution attributable to these investments is not allocated to this segment in accordance with
AASB 114 Segment Reporting, but disclosed as unallocated revenue less unallocated expense.

{b) Business Segments

© Net cash flows from financing activities 16,342,727 } 16.342.727
* The operations of the United Kingdom represent only the investments in Impact Holdings (UK} Plc. The result attributable to this

The Group aperates primarily in the pre-settlement lending market.
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5 Other operating gains / (losses)
Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $

Iy

Net gain on dilution of investment in Impact Heldings

(UK) Ple - 352,307 - -

Net loss on sale of Impact Holdings (UK} Plc investment

held for sale {note 10) (233,107) - (233,107) -

Net loss on sale of Impact Holdings (UK} Plc shares

and options (note 12) {574,710) - (574,710) -

Administration service income - - 80,026 -
(807.817) 352,307 (727,791) -

Net gain on dilution of investment in Impact Holdings {UK) Plc

At 30 June 2006 Impact Capital Limited had a 21% interest in Impact Holdings (UK} Plc, a company incorporated in the
United Kingdom, listed on the London Stock Exchange Alternative Investment Market (AIM) and which is involved in pre-
settlernent lending in that country. In the 2007 financial year, Impact Capital Limited did not participate in an additional
share issue conducted by Impact Holdings (UK) Ple and consequently held only a 15% interest in the Company as at 30
June 2007.

The reduction in the ownership interest (dilution) resulted in a realised gain in the year ended 30 June 2007 of $352,307
which was calculated with reference to the carrying value of Impact Holdings {UK) Plc's net assets at the date of dilution as

follows:
Consclidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $

Carrying value of investment after dilution at fair value

{note 12) - 3,592,559 - -
Carrying value of equity accounted investment prior to

dilution - (3.240,252) - -
Net gain on dilution of investment - 352 307 - -

ersonal use on
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6 Remuneration of auditors

ly

Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia:
Audit and review of financial reports
Overseas KPMG Firms:
Audit and review of financial reports
Total remuneration for audit services

Other services
Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia:
Compliance assurance services
Taxation services
Corporate advisory services
Overseas KPMG Firms:
Taxation services
Total remuneration for other assurance services

7 Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax
Adjustments for ctirrent tax of prior periods
Deferred tax

ersonal use on
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{continued)
Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ §
108,887 114,758 103,938 112,974
2,013 2,229 - -
110,900 116,987 103,938 112,974
22,000 - 22,000 -
8,635 21,846 8,635 21,848
197,036 124,649 197,036 124,649
2,844 3,605 - -
— 230515 150,100 227671 146,495
Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
1,335,077 820,217 1,269,066 826,252
36,180 {19,140) 36,159 {19,448)
{155,784} {70,201) (198,099} (115,722)
1,215,473 730,876 1,107,126 691,082




7 Income tax expense (continued)

Iy

{b) Numerical reconciliation between income tax
expense and pre-tax net profit

Profit / {loss) before tax

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2007 - 30%)
Tax effect of amounts which are not
deductible/(assessable} in calculating taxable income:

Non-geductible expenses

Non-assessable dilution gain

Non-deductible impairment of investment
Non-deductible change in fair value
Share-based payments

Non-deductible capital losses on sale of IHUK
investment

Non-assessable interest income

Difference in overseas tax rates
Under / (over) provided in prior years
Income tax expense

(c) Taxlosses

been recognised

Potential tax benefit @ 30%

rsonal use on

[
7

8 Earnings / {loss) per share

2

Impact Capital Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

{continued)
Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $

3,142,614 434,752 2,778,030 (576,510)
942,784 130,426 833,409 (172,953)
4,982 870 4,824 .

. (105,692) - -

. 639,560 - 800,531

2,833 84,595 2,833 84,595
27,918 - 27,919 -
242,345 - 242,345 -
(10,150 - (10,150} -
1,210,713 749,759 1,101,180 712,173
(898) (1,176) ; -
5658 {17.707) 5,946 {21,091)
1,215,473 730,876 1,107,126 591,082

Unused tax losses far which no deferred tax asset has

2,413 850

2,990,703 2,990,703 2.950.420

897,211 724,155 897,211 885,126

All unused tax losses at 30 June 2008 are capital losses resulting from the sale of the available for sale investment and
the shares and options held in Impact Holdings (UK) Ple. As neither the Company nor the Group currently have a source
v} of future capital gains of this quantum, no deferred tax asset has been recognised.

Consolidated

2008 2007
Cents Cents
iy |
@ (a) Basic earnings / {loss) per share
< Profit / {loss) for the period 3.0 {0.5)
H J Profit / {loss) attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company 3.0 {0.5}
| "__t—\, -
(b) Diluted earnings / {loss) per share
Profit / (loss) from continuing cperations 3.0 {0.5)
Profit / (loss) attributable to the ordinary equity helders of the company 3.0 (0.5)
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

8 Earnings / (loss) per share (continued)

{c) Reconciliations of earnings / {loss) used in calculating earnings per share
% Consolidated

20$08 20$07
@ Basic and diluted earnings / {loss) per share
Profit / (loss) for the period 1,927 141 (296, 124)
@ (d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Consolidated

2008 2007
Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating
@@ basic eamnings / (loss) per share 65,153,118 65,153,118
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Options (i) - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calcuiating diluted earnings / (loss) per share 65,153,118 65153.118

(i} Options

Options granted to executives under the Impact Capital Limited Executive Option Scheme are not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share due to the exercise price of the options exceeding the average market value of
Impact Capital Limited's ordinary shares for the period that the options were outstanding. These options are not dilutive as
at 30 June 2008 however, these options could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future. Details relating to
the options are set out in note 29.

9 Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
Bank balances 1,366,009 2318752 1,353,914 2,297,511

(a) Fair value

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents equals fair value.

nersonal

(b} Risk exposure
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's and the Company's exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in Note 2.

Ol
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{continued)

10 Assets classified as held for sale

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
A — |
Investment in Impact Holdings (UK) Ple - listed shares
at fair value - 474,774 - 474 774

At 30 June 2007 these shares were subject to a contract of sale and hence were presented as held for sate and measured
at fair value in accordance with the terms of that contract. Subsequently, one of the external market conditions of the sale
contract was not met and the contract was renegotiated with a reduction in the sale price, which resulted in a loss of
$233,107 (Note 5).

11 Net loans and advances

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ 3

Net loans and advances

Pre-settlement 44,409,444 27,601,753 42,209,086 26,749,988
QOutlay Funding 9,485,154 6,934,017 9,485,154 6,934,017
Other 77,698 325,896 77,698 325,886
Capitalised interest 10,546,028 4,706,883 9,969,612 4,393,365
Provision for impairment {433,824) {609,793} {400,199) {481.021)
Total other assets 64,084,500 38,958,756 61,341,351 __ 37922245

These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Apart from loans and advances specifically identified as impaired assets, Impact Capital Limited believes that no general
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the balance of loans and advances. This is based upon historic default
rates, the loan profiles, repayment sources and the continual review process undertaken on all outstanding loans.

(a) Pastdue but not impaired

Loans and advances do not have a specified repayment date as the loans and advances are repayable upon settlement of
the client's underlying specified event. A small number of loans and advances are past due.

ersonal use on

O Upon settlement, a loan or advance technically becomes due within 14 days. However this time frame is derived from a
literal reading of the loan documentation utilised by the Group. This loan documentation has been drafted to optimise the
legal position of the Group and Company.

o

As at 30 June 2008, loans and advances of $2,653,954 (2007: $251,747) were past due but hot impaired. These relate to
loans and advances for which the underlying specified event has settled but in respect of which repayment is subject to
either liquidation of reat property now held by the borrower, transfer of legal title of assets to the borrower pursuant to a

@ Court Order or as agreed between the parties, or receipt of claim proceeds from the insurance company or statutory body.

These loans and advances are not considered impaired as the value of the underlying property or the settled claim
significantly exceeds the amount due to the Group and the Company and both the borrower and relevant legal counsel
have acknowledged that the debt, in its entirety, is due and payable.
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Notes to the financial statements
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{continued}
11 Net loans and advances {continued)
The ageing analysis of these loans and advances is as follows:

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
—— $ $ $ $

Past due 0-45 days 873,386 209,001 873,386 209,001
Past due 46-90 days 511,210 42,746 511,210 42 746

Past due 91-150 days 69,341 - 69,341 -

More than 150 days 1200017 ____ - __1200017 _______ -
2,653,954 251,747 2653 954 251,747

——— ——————— S ———— —————————

(b) Impaired loans and advances

impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a particular loan or advance is impaired. An
impairment loss is recognised as soon as there is reasonable doubt over the collectability of principal or interest and fees
in accordance with the loan agreement.

As at 30 June 2008 loans and advances of $689,461 (2007: $1,226,975) for the Group and $643,453 (2007: $1,015,194)
for the Company were considered to be impaired either in full or in part. The amount of the provision raised in relation to
these impaired assets was $433,824 {2007: $609,793) for the Group and $400,199 (2007: $481,021) for the Company.

@D All loans and advances whether or not due for repayment are subject to continuous management review and an

The ageing of these loans and advances is as follows:

1
Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ 3
E Not past due 326,503 787,244 315,907 624,044
Past due 0-45 days - 8,389 - 8,389
Past due 46-90 days - - - -
Past due 91-150 days 45,008 - 45,008 -
More than 150 days 37,980 __431342 282538 ___ 382761
@ 689,461 1,226 975 643,453 1,015,194
g Interest forgone on impaired assets 37,200 56,162 26896 _ 33812
Interest taken to profit on impaired assets 117,928 114,744 116,587 93,337

ap

Q The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of loans and advances during the year is as follows:

(¢} Provision for impairment

P

Consolidated The Company
(L 2008 2007 2008 2007
- $ $ $ 3
(_\ Opening balance 609,793 397,000 481,021 295,262
,./ Charge to operating profit 300,249 329,343 350,519 254,594
X Write-offs (542,683) (116,550) (431,341) (68,835)
i Provision relating to acquired net loan portfolio 66,465 - - -
—— Closing balance 433,824 608.793 400,199 481,021

{(d} Fairvalue

The fair value of net loans and advances as at 30 June 2008 was $64,575,952. The fair value calculation is based on
cash flows discounted using an average current lending rate. The carrying amount of net loans and advances at 30 June
2007 approximated their fair value.
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{continued)

11 Net loans and advances (continued)
(e) Risk exposure

—~Information about the Group’'s and the Company’'s exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk is provided in note 2.

{f) Security

Y

The Group and the Company has the following collateral over loans and advances, including past due and impaired loans. *

Caveats placed on property, with a right to take mortgage granted by the borrower on the majority of famity law
funding, inheritance funding and property marketing finance products,

L]

. Guarantees from law firms and each of its constituent partners in a personal capacity that indemnifies Impact
Capital Limited for full repayment of principal and capitalised interest, on outlay funding leans.

L ]

| E—
Personal injury advances are made on an unsecured non-recourse basis. However the repayment of these loans
@ is effected via an Irrevocable Instruction from the borrower to his/her lawyer’s trust account. No funds are

advanced unless the Irrevocable Instruction is acknowledged by the borrower's lawyer,

12 Other financial assets

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
H——

Investments in controlled entities - at cost {note 25) - - 4,883,321 4,883,321

Investment in Impact Holdings (UK) Plc - options at fair

value - 140,463 - 140,463

Investment in Impact Holdings (UK) Plc - listed shares
D~y at fair value - 1,460,694 - 1,460,694

- 1,601,157 4,883,321 6,484 478
@ Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

P S
Qr:) Movement in investments

At beginning of period 1,601,157 422,447 6,484,478 12,679,897
@ Disposals (1,591,713} - (1,591,713} -

Capital reduction - - - {3,245,000)

Reclassification from investments accounted for using
gO) the equity method - 3,592,558 - -

Impairment of listed shares at fair value - (2,131,865) - (2,668,435)

Change in fair value of options {9.444) {281.984) (9.444) (281.584)

At end of period - 1,601,157 4,883 321 6.484.478

.

L2277 The shares in Impact Holdings (UK) Plc are designated as available for sale financial assets whilst the options in Impact
@ Holdings (UK} Plc are designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

__/j (a} Disposal of investment in Impact Holdings (UK) Plc

unconditional contract, with settlement deferred until 31 December 2009, The sale consideration was recognised at its

t { l On 18 March 2008 the shares and options in Impact Holdings (UK) Plc were sold for $1,256,000 by way of an
- — .7 present value of $1,019,156, resulting in a loss on sale of $574,710 after transaction costs. Refer Notes 5 and 13.

(b} Risk exposure
The maximum exposure to market risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the investments.

For an analysis of the sensitivity of other financial assets to currency and price risk refer to note 2.
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13 Trade and other receivables

y

— Other receivables

Controlied entities

Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Consolidated

30 June 2008
(continued)

The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
$ 3 $ $
1,055,490 2,914 1,055,490 2,914
- - 1,728,780 319,903
1,055,490 2914 2,784,270 322 817

arsonal use on

Included within other receivables is an amount of $1,052,990, representing the present value of deferred consideration for
the sale of the shares and options of Impact Holdings (UK} Plc. Settlement of this receivable is due on 31 December
2009. The Group holds a registered fixed and floating charge over the assets and undertakings of the purchaser.

These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost.

Further information relating to loans o controlled entities is set out in note 24.

{a) Pastdue and impaired

Trade and other receivables are not impaired or past due, It is expected that these balances will be received when due.

{b) Fair value

Due to their nature, the carrying amount of these receivables approximates their fair value.

{¢) Risk exposure

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The fair value of securities held over the deferred settlement receivable is $3,060,000.

14 Deferred tax assets

Consolidated The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable to:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Net loans and advances 352,174 182,938 341,967 144,306
QO) Accrued expenses 60,446 31,331 57,645 29,086
Employee benefits 39,030 15,040 39,030 15,040
Amortisable expenditure 36,463 54 376 32,945 47,339
Intangible assets 12,420 - 12,420 -
\ Other items 2,469 12,701 2,577 12,579
Tax losses - 10,697 - -
@ 503,002 307,083 486,584 248 350
J Amounts recognised direcfly in equity
Share issue expenses 119,955 179,934 119,955 179934
622,957 487 017 606,539 428 284
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities {note 22) - {19.844) - {19.844)
Net deferred tax assets 622,957 467 173 606539 408,440
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15 Intangible assets

Consolidated

At 1 July 2006

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation charge *
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2007

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2008
Opening net book amount
Exchange differences
Additions

Amortisation charge*
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2008

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book amount

The Company

At 1 July 2008

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation charge *
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2007

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book amount

Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2008
(continued)

Computer
Goodwill software Total
$ $ $
954,370 62,009 1,016,379
- (14,473) {14 473)
954 370 47 536 1,001,906
854,370 47 536 1,001,906
- 51,131 51,131
- {58 642) {58,642}
954,370 40,025 994 395
954,370 113,141 1,067,511
- {73,116} (73,.116)
954 370 40,025 994 395
954,370 40,025 984,395
- (91) (91)
- 225,550 225,550
- {73.361) (73.361)
954 370 192.123 1,146,493
954,370 281,892 1,236,262
- (89.769) {89.769)
954, 370 192 123 1,146,493
Computer
software
$
52,011
{3,053)
48,958
48,958
50,052
(58.499)
40511
102,064
{61,553)
40,511
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{continued)

15 Intangible assets (continued)

Computer

The Company (continued} software
$

Year ended 30 June 2008
Opening net book amount 40,511
Additions 225,550
Amortisation charge” {73,006}
Closing net baock amount 193,055
At 30 June 2008
Cost 270,950
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (77,895}
Net book amount 193,055

* The amortisation charge is recognised in depreciation and amortisation expense in the income statement.
Impairment tests for cash generating units containing goodwill

The following units have significant carrying amounts of goodwill:

Consolidated Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $
Australasia 954,370 _954370 = =

The recoverable amount of the Australasian cash-generating unit is based on value-in-use calculations. Those
calculations use cash flow projections based on actual operating results and the budget for 2008, 2010 and 2011. Cash
flows for a further twa year period are extrapolated using a 10 per cent growth rate. This growth rate is a conservative
estimate given the refative immaturity of the consolidated entity in its current form and is consistent with the average
growth rate achieved by the finance industry within which the group operates. A pre-tax discount rate of 13.4 per cent
(2007: 12.8 per cent} has been used in discounting the projected cash flows. )

Management have determined assumptions on income growth, gross interest margin, overhead costs, accessibility to and
utilisation levels of debt funding based on current performance and expectations for the future.

The impairment testing highlights a reasonable buffer between the value-in-use and the net book value of the assets of the
cash generating unit and therefore management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of the cash generating unit to exceed its recoverable amount.
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16 Other assets

Deposits
Prepayments

These financial assets are measured at amortised cost.

(a) Fairvalue

The fair value of other assets is equal to their carrying value.

(b) Risk exposure

Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

{continued)

Consolidated

The Company

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of other assets.

17 Trade and other payables

Payables and accrued expenses
Loans from controlled entities

These financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

{a) Fairvalue

2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
6,257 55,807 6,257 55,807
305,340 276,870 301,342 275,626
311,597 332677 307,599 331,433
Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
673,571 256,488 659,829 248,003
- - 5,149,388 5292 761
673,571 256,488 5,809,217 5 540 764

The fair value of trade and other payables is equal to their carrying value.

{b) Risk exposure

Information about the Group's and the Company's exposure to liquidity risk is provided in note 2.

18 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Secured
Commercial advance facility

Transaction costs - Commercial advance facility
Accrued interest - Commercial advance facility

Bank bill facility

Transaction costs - Bank bill facility
Total interest bearing liabilities

These financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ S $ $

45,000,000 - 45,000,000 -
(229,736} - (229,736) -
685,493 - €85,493 -

- 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
= (46 398) - (46 398)

45,455 757 24 953,602 45 455,757 24 953 602

The following information is provided in respect of the contractual terms of the Company’s and Group's interest bearing

loans and borrowings.
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18 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {(continued)

{(a) Financing arrangements

Total facilities
Bank overdraft and guarantee facility
Bank bill facility
Commercial advance facility

Used at balance date
Bank averdraft and guarantee facility
Bank bill facility
Commercial advance facility

Unused at balance date
Bank overdraft and guarantee facility
Bank bill facility
Commercial advance facility

Total facilities
Used at balance date
Unused at balance date

Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

Consolidated The Company
2007 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
500,000 37,132 500,000 37,132
- 40,000,000 - 40,000,000
50,000,000 - 50,000,000

50,500,000

40,037 132 50,500,000 40,037,132

——————

143,581 37,132 143,581 37,132
- 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
45,000,000 - 45 000,000 -
45,143 581 25 037,132 45143 581 25.037.132
356,419 - 356,419 -
- 15,000,000 - 15,000,000

5,000,000 - 5,000,000

5,356,419

50,500,000
45,143,581

15,000,000 5,356,419 15,000,000

40,037,132 50,500,000 40,037,132
25 037,132 45,143,581 25,037,132

5,356,419

15,000,000 5356419 15,000.000

On 31 August 2007 the Company entered into a bank overdraft, guarantee and commercial advance debt facility with a
new financier, the purpose of which was to refinance the existing bank bill facility and te fund future growth. On this date
the Bank Bill facility with the Group's previous financier was fully repaid.

This current facility is available for a three year term, expiring 4th September 2010, is subject to annual review and is
secured by a fixed and floating charge over all of the assets of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Interest rates are variable based on the BBSW (Australian Bank Bill Swap Rate) plus a margin and are fixed at the date of

each advance.

(b) Facility agreements

During the current and prior years there were no defaults or breaches on any agreements with financiers.

{c} Fairvalue

The fair value of interest bearing loans and borrowings approximates their carrying value.

(d) Risk exposure

Information about the Group's and Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risk is provided in note 2.
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Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

19 Income tax payable

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
Income tax 1,333,116 820,217 1,333,034 820.217

The current tax liability for the Group represents the amount of income taxes payable in respect of current financial
periods. In accordance with the tax consolidation legisiation, the Company, as the head entity of the Australian tax
consolidated group, has assumed the current tax liability initially recognised by the members in the tax consolidated group.

Franking credits

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
Franking credits available for subsequent financial
years based on a tax rate of 30% (2007 - 30%) 2,562,341 1,189,524 2,562 341 1,189,524

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financia! year, adjusted for franking
credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax.

The consolidated amounts include franking credits that would be available to the Company if distributable profits of
subsidiaries were paid as dividends.

20 Employee benefits

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ 3
Liability for annual leave 130,099 50,133 130,099 50,133
Salary and wages accrued 208,931 25287 208.931 25,287
339,030 75420 339,030 75,420

The Group makes contributions to various defined contribution superannuation funds. The amount recognised as an
expense was $181,422 for the financial year ended 30 June 2008 (2007: $75,625).

21 Capital and reserves

The Company
2008 2007
Shares Shares
Share capital
Ordinary shares on issue at 30 June 65153118 65,153,118

{a) Ordinary shares

Effective 1 July 1998, the Company Law Review Act abalished the concept of par value shares and the concept of
autharised capital. Accordingly, the Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued
shares,
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

21 Capital and reserves (continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitted to one vote
per share at meetings of the Company.

(b) Executive Option Scheme

Information relating to the Impact Capital Limited Executive Option Scheme, including details of options issued during the
financial year and options outstanding at the end of the financial year, is set out in note 29.

{c) Capital risk management

The Group's objective when managing capital is to ensure that its creditors and shareholders are sufficiently protected
against unexpected losses to a level consistent with the Group's risk appetite.

The capital of the Group consists of equity, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings and total debt
facilities as detailed in Note 18.

The directors have set a ratio of between 65% and 75% as the maximum level of debt to equity until such time as the
Group is believed to have reached maturity. This maximum is considered sustainable given the relative liquidity of the
Group's assets and appropriate given the high level of collateral provided by the underlying security against those assets.

In addition to managing the level of capital adequacy the Group will also attempt to optimise the mix of capital resources
by minimising the cost of capital and maximising shareholder returns, In this regard the minimum leve! of debt to equity is
to be a gearing ratio of 55%.

Consolidated ° The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ 3 $ $
Total borrowings 45,455,757 24,953,602 45,455,757 24,953,602
Less: cash and cash equivalents —(1,366,009) __(2.318752) _ (1,353,914) _ (2207 511)
Net debt 44,089,748 22,634,850 44,101,843 22 656,001
Total equity 20974168 __ 19110505 __18,723.993 _ 16860027
Total capital —65,063916 __417403505 __ 62825836 _ 30616118
Gearing ratio 68 % 54 % 0% 57 %

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
(d) Reserves

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of fareign operations where their functional currency is different to the presentation currency of the reporting entity.

Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumutative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until the
investment is derecognised.

Share based payments reserve
The share based payments reserve is used to record the value of share based payments provided to executives under the
Executive Option Scheme as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 29 for further details of this plan.

{e) Dividends
No dividends have been declared or paid during the financial year (2007: Nil}.
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(continued}
22 Deferred tax liabilities
Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable to:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Prepayments - 19,844 - 19.844
- 19.844 - 19.844
Set-off of deferred tax ltabilities (note 14) - (19.844) - {19.844)

Net deferred tax liabilities - - - -

23 Key management personnel disclosures

{a) Key management personnel

The following were key management personne! of the Group at any time during the financial year and unless otherwise
indicated were key management personnel for the entire year.

(i) Non-executive directors
K Rich (Chairperson)

J Laurie

L Lizow

(ii} Executive directors
R Templeton {Chief Executive Officer)

(iii) Executives

B Gebauers (General Manager - Compliance and Special Projects)
A Hill (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary}

B Lyle (General Counsel)

(b) Key management personnel compensation

The key management personne! compensation included in “employee benefits expense” in the Income Statements are as
follows:

Consclidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
Short-term employee benefits 1,196,173 872,994 1,196,173 872,994
Post-employment benefits 96,606 39,784 96,606 39,784
Share-based payments 93,062 - 93,062 -
1,385,841 912778 1,385,841 912.778

—————— ————— e———— ——————

The Group has taken advantage of the relief provided by Corporations Regufation 2M.3.03 and has transferred the
detailed remuneration disclosures to the directors’ report. The relevant information can be found in the remuneration
report.
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

23 Key management personnel disclosures {(continued)

{c} Equity instrument disclosures relating to key management personnel

{iy  Options provided as remuneration
Details of options provided as remuneration, together with the terms and conditions of the options can be found in the
remuneration report section of the directors' report.

(i)  Option holdings
The Impact Capital Limited Executive Option Scheme was established during the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

The movement during the reporting period in the number of options over ordinary shares in Impact Capital Limited held,
directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, is as follows;

2008

Balance at | Granted as| Balance at

start of the | compen- | end of the |Vested and
Name year sation year exercisable| Unvested
Directors
R Templeton | - [ 1,116,000 | 1,110,000 | - { 1,110,000
Other key management personnel of the Group
B Gebauers - 120,000 120,000 - 120,000
A Hill - 150,000 150,000 - 150,000
B Lyle - 150,000 150,000 - 150,000

| use only

(i} Share holdings

The numbers of ordinary shares in the Company held by each director of impact Capital Limited and other key
management personnel, including their personally-related entities, are set out below.

g 2008
Balance at the
@ startofthe | Purchases/ Other Balance at the
Name year (Sales) changes |end of the year
Directors
K Rich 100,000 - - 100,000
R Templeton 1,912,235 32.035 - 1,944,270
g L Litzow 2,550,000 (70,000) - 2,480,000
J Laurie 50,000 25,000 - 75,000
@D Other key management personnel of the Group
B Gebauers 602,000 - - 602,000
q A Hill 91,700 70,907 - 162,607
%O A B Lyle 218,109 2,859,000 - 3,077,109
2007
T Balance at the
[S— start of the Purchases/ Other Balance at the
(.: N Name year {Sales) changes end of the year
\"D Directors
K Rich 100,000 - - 100,000
i | R Templeton 1,802,300 109,935 - 1,912,235
I L Litzow 2,550,000 - 1 2550,000
=227 [ S Laurie 30,250 19,750 - 50,000
Other key management personnel of the Group
B Gebauers 602,000 - - 602,000
A Hill - 51,700 - 91,700
B Lyle 187,638 30,471 - 218,109
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

{continued)

23 Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

No shares were granted to key management personnel as compensation during the financial year or the previous financial
year.

No shares were received on the exercise of options during the financial year or the previous financial year.

(d) Other transactions with key management personnel

There were no other transactions with key management personnel or their related parties during the current reporting
period.

A number of key management personnel, or their related entities transacted with the Company or the Group in the
previous financial year. The terms and conditions of the transactions were no more favourable than those available, or
which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non key management personnel related
entities on an arm’s length basis.

The transactions with key management personnel or their related parties during the previous financial year were as
follows:

2007

Templeton Smith Lawyers & Consultants, a firm controlled by Mr R Templeton, provided legal services to the Company.
Fees were billed based on normal market rates for such services and were due and payable under normal payment terms,

Templeton Smith Lawyers & Consultants, a firm controlled by Mr R Templeton, sub-leased premises to the Company until
10 August 2006. The terms of the sub-lease were based on market rates.

Jalpont Pty Ltd, a company controlled by Mr R Templeton, provided a short-term unsecured loan of $200,000 to the
Company. Interest was charged at normat commercial rates. The loan was repaid on 7 July 2006.

The aggregate amounts recognised during the year relating to key management personnel and their related parties were
as follows:

2008 2007
$ 3

Consolidated and Company
Amounts recognised as expense
Legal fees - 1,672
Occupancy expense - 9,634
Interest expense - 461

- 11.767

There were no amounts receivable from and payable to key management personnel or their related entities at 30 June
2008 (2007: nil).

24 Other related party transactions

{a) Parent entities

The ultimate parent entity within the Group is Impact Capital Limited. Impact Capital Limited has a related party
relationship with its subsidiaries and associates.
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Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

{continued)

24  Other related party transactions (continued)

(b} Subsidiaries

Interest-free loans are made by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries to the Company. These loans are repayable on
demand. At 30 June 2008 the amount owing by the Company totalled $5,149,388 (2007: $5,292,761).

An interest-free loan has been made by the Company to Impact Funding {N2Z) Limited. This loan is denominated in
Australian dollars and is repayable on demand. At 30 June 2008 the amount owing to the Company was $1,728,780
(2007: $319,903).

An Administration service fee has been charged by the Company to Impact Funding (NZ) Limited. This fee represents the
reimbursement of the costs of all operational functions provided by the Company to Impact Funding (NZ) Limited.

25 Consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1{b):

Country of
Name of entity incorporation Class of shares Equity holding
2008 2007

% Yo
Parent entity
Impact Capital Limited
Subsidiaries
ACN 109 006 126 Pty Ltd {formerly Impact Funding
Limited} Australia Ordinary 100 100
Ask Funding Pty Ltd {formerly Impact Outlay Funding Pty
Ltd) Australia Ordinary 100 100
Property Marketing Finance Pty Ltd {formerly Debt
Exchange Pty Ltd)* Australia Ordinary 100 100
Impact Funding Pty Ltd* Australia Ordinary 100 100
Property Stream Pty Ltd (formerly Commission Direct Pty
Lid)* Australia Ordinary 100 100
Inheritance Funding Pty Ltd* Australia Ordinary 100 100
Impact Funding (NZ) Limited New Zealand Ordinary 100 100

The above ownership interest reflects the legal structure of the consclidated entity.

In the financial statements of the Company, investments in controlled entities are measured at cost and included
with other financial assets.

These subsidiaries are dormant companies.

26 Contingencies

The directors of the Company are not aware of any material contingent liabilities that exist in respect of either the
Company or any of its controlled entities.
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(continued)

27 Commitments

Operating leases

The Group leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within two to five years. The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Group also leases office equipment under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within three to four years. The
leases have no escalation clauses or renewal terms.

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

$ $ $ $
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation
to non-canceliable operating ieases are payable as
follows:
Within one year 243,548 170,582 243,548 170,582
Later than one year but not later than five years 464,573 525622 464,573 525622

708,121 696,204 708,121 896,204

The amounts recognised as an expense in the income statement are as follows:

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ 5 $ $
Operating lease payments —221,856 175,529 222474 175529

28 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

On 18 July 2008 the Group obtained a $5 million increase in its financing arrangements taking the total available facility to
$55.5 million.

29 Share-based payments

{a) Executive Option Scheme

The establishment of the tmpact Capital Limited Executive Option Scheme was approved by shareholders at the annuat
general meeting held on 21 November 2007. The Executive Option Scheme is designed to provide long-term incentives
for executives, including executive directors, to deliver long-term shareholder returns. Under the plan, executives are
granted options which only vest if the executive completes a specified period of service. Once vested the options remain
exercisable for a period of between 2 and 4 years. However the options issued in the current year can only be exercised
in the event of the Company's share price reaching certain qualifying prices which range from $0.80 to $1.50. When
exercised each option is converted into one ordinary share of the Company. Participation in the plan is at the Board’s
discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.

personal use only
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Options are granted under the plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting rights.

(

Jl

(

The exercise price of options is determined by the directors but is no less than the volume weighted average price at which
the Company's shares are traded on the Australian Stock Exchange during the five trading days immediately before the
options are granted or such other price as approved by shareholders at a general meeting.

TI:_T!
L. 7/

b
l
1

-63-



29

Share-based payments (continued)

Set out below are summaries of options granted under the plan:

Impact Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2008

(continued)

Vested and
) Balance at| Granted | Exercised | Forfeited | Balance at |exercisable
Exercise |start of the| during the | during the | during the | end of the | atend of
Grant Date Expiry date price year year year year year the year
Number Number Number Number Number Number
Consolidated and the Company - 2008
23 November |23 November
2007 2012 $0.645 - 420,000 - - 420,000 -
23 November |23 November
2007 2012 $0.600 -1 1,110,000 - -1 1,110,000 -
Total -1 1,530,000 - -1 1,530,000 -
Weighted average exercise price 3 $0.612 $- $- $0.612 $-

ersonal use only
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No options expired during the period.

Fair value of options granted
The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the year ended 30 June 2008 was an average of 16 cents
per option. The fair value at grant date is determined using Black-Scholes and Binomial aption pricing models that take
into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 30 June 2008 included:

(a)
(b)

options are granted for no consideration and vest based on the completion of a specified period of service.

options are exercisable only in the event of the Company's share price reaching certain qualifying prices during

the life of the options with such prices ranging between $0.80 and $1.50. Options are exercisable for a period

of between two and four years after vesting.
exercise price: $0.60 or $0.645
grant date: 23 November 2007

{c)
(d)
(e)
0
(@
(h}
(i}

expected dividend yield: nil

risk-free interest rate: 6.115%

expiry date: 23 November 2012
share price at grant date; $0.69

expected price volatility of the company's shares: 32%

(b) Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the period as part of employee benefit

expense were

as follows:

Options issued under Executive Option Scheme

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ $ $ $
93,062 - 93,062
93,062 - 93,062

-B4-



ersonal use only

=or

Impact Capital Limited
Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2008

{continued)

30 Reconciliation of profit (loss) after income tax to net cash flow from operating activities

Profit / (loss) for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Change in fair value of investments

Foreign exchange (gain} loss

Net loss on sale of Impact Holdings (UK) Plc investment

hetd for sale

Net loss on sale of Impact Holdings (UK) Pic shares

and opticns

(Gain) on dilution

Impairment of loans and advances

Impairment of investments

Interest income

Fee income

Interest expense

Non-cash employee benefits expense - employee share

options

Cther income accrued

Income tax expense / (benefit}

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (Increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease (Increase) in capitalised interest
Decrease (Increase) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase (decrease) in provisions and employee
benefits

Interest paid

Interest and fees received

Income tax paid

Net cash inflow / (ocutflow) from operating activities

Consolidated

2008
$

1,927,141
124,522
9,444

233,107
574,710
300,249-

(11,369,571;)

(982,461)
3,391,130
93,062
1,215,47:;
414

(50,778)
219,706

263,610
(2,332,672)
7,492,797

{860,000)

246 882
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The Company

2007 2008 2007
$ $ $

(296,124) 1,670,904 (1.267,592)

74,839 124,029 74,674

296,816 9,444 296,816

14,476 - 14,476

- 233,107 -

- 574,710 -

(352,307} - -

329,343 350,519 254,594

2,131,865 - 2,668,435
{6,961,125)  (10,893,517) (6,702,347)
(427,079) (947,335) (413,292)

1,426,512 3,391,118 1,426,512

- 93,062 -

- (80,026) -

730,876 1,107,126 691,082
(10,567) 414 (10,567)
(27,720) (62,762} (26,475)
{65,062) 200,545 (69,053)

30,235 288,897 30,235
(1,303,193) (2,332,661} {1,303,193)

4,393,421 6,964,566 3,695,818
(369,307) {860,000} (362,454}
(384 101) (170.860) (702,331}




Impact Capital Limited

Diractors’ declaration
30 June 2008

In the directors’ opinion:

(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 24 to 65 and the remuneration disclosures that are contained in
the Remuneration report in the Directors' report set out on pages 8 to 13 are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:
i
® giving a trve and fair view of the Company's and Group's financial position as at 30 June 2008 and of their
performance, for the financial year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and
the Corporation Regulations 2001,
(b the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 1.
(c) the remuneration disclosures that are contained in the Remuneration report in the Director's report comply with the

Corporations Act 2001 and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.

The directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by section
2954 of the Corporations Act 2001.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

A 2

Kenneth R Rich

Brisbane
22 August 2008

I

|
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Impact Capital Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Impact Capital Limited (the Company}, which comprises the
balance sheets as at 30 June 2008, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity and cash flow
statements for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes 1to
30 and the directors' dectaration of the Group comprising the Company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or
from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
In note 1(a) the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements, that the financial report of the Group, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report,

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian Accounting Interpretations},
a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company's and the Group's financia! position and of their
performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of Impact Capital Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2008 and of their
performance for the year ended on that date; and

{ii} complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Carporations Regulations 2001.

(b) the financial report of the Group also complies with International Financia! Reporting Standards as disclosed in
note 1(a). .
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(continued)

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in section 4 of the directors' report for the year ended 30 June 2008,
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance
with Section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report,
based on our audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards.

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion, the remuneration report of Impact Capita! Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008, complies with Section
300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

KM

KPMG
ﬁfwm Richwadn

Jillian Richards
Partner

Brisbane
22 August 2008
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EXPANDING niche lender Impact Capital Limited (ASX Code: ICD) has posted an 58
percent lift in normalised operating profit before tax to $3.96 million for the year to June 30
2008, compared with $2.51 million in the prior year.

Profit after tax increased to $1.93 million from a loss after tax in the prior year of $0.3
million. Correspondingly earnings per share increased to 3.0 cents.

Managing Director Russell Templeton said “despite increases to the cost of funds, Impact
Capital has delivered a significant increase to core earnings whilst continuing its strategic
investment in staff, marketing platforms and systems to ensure it is well placed to deliver
further improvement to performance in FY09 and beyond.”

“The demand for our existing products is growing and this is reflected in the size of our loan
book which is now in excess of $65 million.”

Results at a glance

FYO08 FYO07 Change
$000's $000’s %
Interest and fee income 12,352 7,388 +67
Interest expense {3,391) (1,427) +138
Net interest and fee income 8,961 5,961 +50
ﬂ H _ Expenses {5,001) (3,450) +45
- — Normalised pre-tax profit 3,960 2,511 +58
Gain (loss) on UK investment 817) (2,078)
Profit before income tax 3,143 435 +623
Income tax expense (1,218) {(731) :
Profit after tax 1,927 (296) +751
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Net interest and fee income

Net interest and fee income was up 50 percent to $8.96 million from $5.96 million
previously, reflecting strong volume growth in the loan book which totalled $65.3 million at
June 30, 2008.

Interest expense increased to $3.39 million from $1.43 million previously, reflecting an
increase of $20 million in total debt drawn as the Group continued to leverage of its existing
shareholders funds, and higher base funding costs (BBSW) caused by the volatility in both
Australian and global debt markets.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses increased by 45 percent to $5.0 million. The most significant expense
continues to be the Company’s investment in its people which rose 88 percent during the
period to $2.85 million. This increase reflects retention and long term equity incentive
strategies implemented for key staff; the expansion of the business development and
marketing functions; and higher salary and recruitment costs necessitated by the tight
employment market.

Mr Templeton commented that despite these strategic initiatives and the effect of infiation
on general expenses, Impact had maintained its cost to net interest income ratio at 62
percent as productivity improvements took effect.

Impaimment expense

The amount provisioned for impaired loans reduced by 0.8 percent to $0.30 million
reflecting strict adherence to lending policies and procedures and continuous monitoring of
all loans regardless of the performance status. Mr Templeton commented that the
Company has no exposure to sub-prime lending and remains largely unaffected by
economic and market conditions as all borrowers have an identifiable source of repayment
and with no reliance on their capacity to service debt.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense rose from $0.73 million to $1.22 million reflecting the increase in the
underlying operating profit.

UK investment

In the course of the year the Company sold its residual investment in Impact Holdings (UK)
Plc. Mr Templeton said “the sale of a non-core and illiquid asset enabled management to
focus solely on the continuing development of the Australasian cperations.”

Dividend

Notwithstanding the previous announcement of a dividend policy, the Board has resolved
that no dividend will be paid in respect FY08. Mr Templeton said “the board considered
that the retention of funds to support the growth of the business was in the medium and
tong term interests of shareholders however this position is reviewed at each half.”
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Debt facility

Mr Templeton said “on 4 July 2008 the Company announced that it had negotiated a $5m
increase to its existing debt facility to $55.5m on more flexible terms and that it had settled
on a preferred financing strategy involving a number of banks to meet its future funding
needs. “The execution of this strategy is progressing in line with expectations.”

Outlook

The Company expects sustained demand for its existing suite of products in the current
year. However the Board has resolved that whilst the uncertainty and volatility in both debt
and equity markets prevail, the business will operate within its current available capital and
focus on maximising profit.

Mr. Templeton said "we have targeted pre-tax operating profit of between $4.9 million and
$5.2 million for the financial year ending 30 June 2009 which given the extraordinary market
condition and a slowing economy is a testament to the strength of the business moedel and
the strategies implemented in the financial year just ended.”

About Impact Capital

Impact Capital Limited was the first mainstream pre-settlement lender to list on the
Australian Securities Exchange.

The company’s main product offerings relate to:

Personal injury claims;

Matrimonial settlements;

Inheritance Funding;

Outlay disbursement funding for key legal firms and their clients; and
Property Marketing Finance.

For further information please contact;
Russell Templeton Alison Hill ' £Np

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer -
+61(0) 7 3211 8000 +61(0) 7 3211 8000
+ 61 (0) 407 639 622 + 61 (0) 411 488 850
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